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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange.
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcement in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors
should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Thiz Technology Group Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to Thiz Technology Group
Limited. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: 1. the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; 2. there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and 3. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due
and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

Corporate Profile

Based in Hong Kong, Thiz Technology Group Llimited (“Thiz", the
"Company” or the "Group”) is the first and a leading developer of Linux
solutions for PC and provider of internet application technology users.
Thiz was also the first Linux software solution provider listed in the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in July
2001 (Stock Code: 8119]. Thiz is a provider of various computing
solutions and related services targeting individuals, small to medium size
enterprises and educational insfitutions. The products and services provided
by the Group include Thizlinux (operating system deskiop and server),
applications and other related services, such as software installation,
fraining and education. Thiz launches high quality products that are flexible

to customise for SMEs, government and educational institutions.

Thiz is devoted to developing Linux sysfems, interet application fechnology
and related applications, and promote the Group's brandname fo the
global market. Thizlinux is the Group’s R&D backbone on Linux operating
systems and applications. The Group has infroduced a wide range of
products including Thizlinux desktop systems, office suites, server
applications, Internet trading systems, diskless solution, intranet

collaborative software, anti-virus software and firewall.
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Corporate Profile

RN

To promote Linux general education, Thiz provides various solufions on
Linux education for primary and secondary schools, terfiary instfitutions
and fraining cenfres. The solutions include course management, training
materials, tfeaching plans, training cerfifications, examination system and
other related services. Currently, the Group is actively promoting learning

and usage of Thizlinux products in China and Hong Kong.

On regional development, the Group has offices in Hong Kong, Taiwan
and China. Through software bundling, OEM partnerships, education
and Thizlinux enferprise solutions, the Group offers comprehensive support
and services to governments, private enferprises, educational institutions

as well as individual users in the Greater China region.
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Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

Corporate Milestone

EERER

2004

Mar 2004

Feb 2004

Jan 2004

2003

Dec 2003

Commencement of the courses for first intake of “Thiz
BEST fraining programme for Linux Professionals of China
and Hong Kong" in Hong Kong

"1+1+1 Project” = Training School of Beijing Software
Industry Promotion Cenfre/Worldwide Training Base (Xian)
for the State Software Professionals

Signed "Cooperation Agreement” for "Thiz BEST fraining
programme for Linux Professionals of China and Hong
Kong” with Centre for Innovation and Technology of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

ThizServer 7.0 (IA64-bit Version) became the first 64-bit
Linux server awarded LSB1.3 infernational cerfification in

Asia

Signed “"Cooperative Pariner Agreement” with 3L 75 1TE
M EREMBRAR

Commenced enrolment of “Thiz BEST training programme
for Linux Professionals of China and Hong Kong”

Became the cooperative partner with the University of Hong
Kong

"1+1+1 Project” — the first intake of “Linux Network
Engineer” graduated

Signed "Cooperation Agreement” for “Thiz BEST fraining
programme for Linux Professionals of China and Hong
Kong” with Computer Engineering and Information
Technology Department of City University of Hong Kong

Became alliance partner with CompTIA Learning Alliance

2004

2004 % 3 A

2004 F 2 A

2004 1 A

2003 ¥
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Corporate Milestone

EERER

Nov 2003

Oct 2003

Sep 2003

Aug 2003

Jul 20083

Allied with Sybase and jointly developed office application
software

"Thiz Easy Shop” launched in Taiwan with favourable

feedback

"1+1+1 Project” — commenced enrolment in Dalian,
Changchun and Shenyang

Products successfully launched in Shanghai and the Group
donated 600 sets of Linux software to Shanghai Acute
Demand Professional Training Services Centre

Donated 20,000 sefs of Linux software to Dalian Municipal

Government

Commenced enrolment of “linux Network and Software
Engineer” course of “1+1+1 Project” in Beijing

Cooperafed with Career Times to launch the first Linux
professionals recruitment webpage in Hong Kong

Llaunched “1+1+1 Project’, in cooperation with Beijing
Software Industry Promotion Centre

HKSAR Government began to apply the Group's software

Signed “Sun’s Policy on Grey and Secondary Market
Transactions of Sun Products & Services” with Sun
Microsystems

Signed “Distributor Agreement” with Jardine OneSolution
(HK) Lid

Signed “Cooperation Agreement” with the Nationwide
Electronic Information Application Education Centre,
Ministry of Information Industry/School of Continuing
Education of Tsinghua University

Became cooperafive partner with Infel

A

2003F 11 A

20034 10 A
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Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

Corporate Milestone

EERER

Jun 2003

May 2003

Apr 2003

Mar 2003

Feb 2003

Dec 2002

Sep 2002

Aug 2002

"Thizlinux Deskiop 7.0" became the first brand awarded
LSB1.3 certification in Asia

Signed "OEM Software Distribution Agreement” with
Sybase HK Lid

Signed “Cooperative Pariner Agreement” with R IIEEE

R B AR AR

Signed “Cooperation Agreement” with Training School
of Beijing Software Industry Promotion Centre

School of Software of Northeast University allied with Thiz
Free Software Education Alliance fo promote Thizlinux
courses

Signed "Cooperative Pariner Agreement” with 3t 70 F
MEBRAT

Became cooperafive partner with Oracle
Became cooperative partner with HP

Office of Shaanxi Provincial Government and Information
Centre of Shaanxi Provincial Government applied
ThizOffice

Joint hands with City University of Hong Kong to promote
education and technology advancement of Linux

Signed agreement with China Electronic Information
Application Education Center of Ministry of Information
Industry to establish the National I.T. Training and
Examination Management Office to nurture 175,000
professionals on information fechnology in three years

Infroduced a series of Thizlinux fraining course with Peking
University

Infroduced Thizlinux courses with Beijing Normal University
Released ThizServer 6.0 and Thizlinux Desktop 6.2; Joint

Linux World Conference and Exposition in L.A.; Established
an education alliance of open-source software in China

2003 F 6 A

2003 5 A

2003 F 4 A

2003 3 A

2003 2 A

2002F 12 A

2002 9 A

2002 8 A
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Corporate Milestone

EERER

Jun 2002 Cooperated with IBM in Taiwan to launch the SOS Office 2002 £ 6 A
Suite
Apr 2002 launched Thizlinux Deskiop 6.0 and ThizOffice 3.0 2002 F 4 A
Feb 2002  Established strategic alliances with Elitegroup and 2002 £ 2 A
Chaintech
Jan 2002 Obtained "A+" rating from China’s Standardisation of 2002 4 1 A
Information Technology Committee
Oct 2001 Upgraded Thizlinux Deskiop to 5.0 version 2001 F 10 A
Jul 2007 Listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 2001 5 7 A
Limited
May 2001 Launched ThizOffice 2.0 2001 F 5 A
May 2000  Launched Thizlinux Deskiop 1.0 20004 5 A
Dec 1999 Established the Hong Kong headquarter 19099 £ 12 A
Jun 1998 Company Established 1998 F 6 A
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Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

Business Development Strategies
and Plans

BB R KT E

The Group is committed fo ifs established “Seven Core Businesses”,
regarding it as the principal business development strategy, and aim fo
globalize the Group's business. Meantime, the Group set out its basic
tone of “Based in the Greater China, setting eyes on the whole world”.
Presently, the Group's technology of 64-bit Thiz Super 1A64 Server 7.0
has been awarded LSB 1.3 infernational certification. Indeed, throughout
the Linux industry, there are only three companies possessing this 64-bit
technology, namely Red Hat in the United States, SuSE in Germany and
our Thiz in Hong Kong. The Group eagerly strives to success and plans

a development tactic of “4 Wheels in One Track with Crossduplication”.

"The First VWheel" is to develop e-commerce applications in Taiwan. The
Group will apply Linux core technologies to e-commerce in the
development of B2B, B2C, C2C e-commerce applications such as
"Owners Zone" [ownerszone.com), "Virtual Mall”, " B 24 " (online
wholesale), “Trading web" (thizbiz.com) and the launch of "Thiz Easy
Shop”. In Taiwan, e<commerce has achieved highly remarkable results.
The Group anticipates to keep developing "Owners Zone” which will
become the largest mall zone in Taiwan. By capitalizing this successful
experience, the Group will adopt the same sfrategies in Hong Kong and
China, through which to accomplish the fourth core of the “Seven Core

Businesses”.

"The Second Wheel” is the Institute of Thiz Technology in Hong Kong.
Apart from the development of Thiz BEST's 15-subjects teaching materials
tailored for students of “1+1+1 Project” in China, the Institute will continue
to develop and launch project management, 3D animation and games
design, and IC design, hoping to organize online game design
competition in the Greater China region in the foreseeable future. In
addition, the Institute will continuously update and design new teaching
materials, train the teachers, in order to achieve its education mission of
nurturing experts. Through duplication and promotion, the Institute will

become the most prominent pre-career education institute for IT and Linux

professions in the Greater China region. With its continuously improving
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Business Development Strategies
and Plans

BB R KT E

deskiop and server products, the competitive advantages of the Group's
products will be further enhanced, thereby driving and promoting its
international strategic alliance and product bundling business. Through

which, the sixth core of the “Seven Core Businesses” will be accomplished.

"The Third Wheel” is in China. With the success of Thiz BEST "1+1+1
Project” training programme, training business will gradually be expanded.
Ouwr training business started from initially one training centre which was
collaborated with Beijing Software Industry Promotion Centre, to now
being expanded fo nationwide. Our training centres in China will increase
from 4 in the end of 2003 to 30 by the end of 2004. In addition, Hong
Kong and Taiwan will join the fraining business and esfablish more than
50 similar centres by the end of 2005, and even to globalize the business.

Then, the fifth core of the “Seven Core Businesses” will be accomplished.

"The Fourth Wheel" is the Group. We are going to establish Thizlinux
Institutes all over the Greater China region. These institutes will be
established to meet the need of students’ 6 months’ research and
development practice, after finishing the Thiz BEST studies. The students
will be divided into different project teams, responsible for research and
development of application software in order to accomplish the Group's
mission of development of supercomputer on Linux |first core),
implementation of e-government affairs (second core) and designing of
solutions for enterprises (third core). Results of the Institutes will be mutually
duplicated, localized and optimized. With the globalization of products
and education, the Group will be able to provide worldwide pracficing,

research and development, and product after-sale services.

Based on the Group's development strategy of the “Seven Core Businesses”
and development factic of "4 Wheels in One Track with Cross-duplication”,
we believe the Group's development will accelerate at full speed with

explosive power.
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Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

10

Business Development Strategies 7353 R KM R T2l
and Plans

On the joint collaboration agreement signing ceremony
between Thiz Technology Group Llimited and
Department of Computer Engineering and Information
System of City University of Hong Kong

BN R S B AR AR EEF BT AL B TI2E
BB RA T ERNER

4 March 2003
—EE=4=AEMAH

On Thiz Technology Group Limited’s Group Summit
BIEMMEERRAREEANTSESR

11-12 July 2003
—EE=F+A+—E+=H

launching of Thiz Deskitop 7.0 and
ThizOffice 4.0

BNis REER R R 7.0 RENE 80/20 288
MRELOEREM

29 August 2003
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Business Development Strategies 7353 R KM R T2l
and Plans

Commencement of the courses for first intake of “Thiz BEST training programme
for Linux Professionals of China and Hong Kong” in Hong Kong

(Thiz BEST % Linux EF 55 B 71 8]] E—HRENFEFRR

11 March 2004
—EENF=A+—H

Commencement of the courses for the second intake of “Thiz BEST training programme

for Linux Professionals of China and Hong Kong" in Hong Kong

[Thiz BEST %38 Linux B 3 B3t 8] E_HRRNEBMR |

10 May 2004
—TTmgRA+g i

Linux World Conference & Expo

Linux Worlld @ MR E

4-5 November 2003
—ZEE-F+—AMERHA

ISIA = ICT Expo 2004
ARRMIEEE — 2004 BFE

[
14-17 April 2004 L f.)
ZTEMEN [+ r &

—
z++A gy !
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CEPA Dalian — Hong Kong Conference for [T Indusiry
CEPA KiE-BE T EXBHKE

4 September 2003
“RE=FAAMA

Annual Report 2004 F %

11




Thiz Technology Group Limited BRESRIFFEE AR A 7]
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Financial Highlights MBERHE

Turnover Analysis ERBTN
2004 (HK$'000) 2003 (HK$'000)

ZEEMEF (TR ZEE=F (D)

48.9%

. Distribution of Group's Linux based software products
2 AR Elinux B E

D Sales of computer products
HE A

Training income

A

2004 2003
—EENEF —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Financial Position B AR T
— Total assets —BEE 48,472 40,381
— Total liabilities —HaE 23,043 9,906
— Shareholders’ funds —BRES 25,429 30,475

Financial Ratios B th =
— Current ratio — BN & 4.5 6.1
— Gross profit margin —BBRER 58% 76%
— Gearing ratfio —BERBHE 1% 33%
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Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

14

Chairman’s Statement

Review

The development of Linux is thriving with the participation of large-scaled
hardware and software suppliers such as IBM, Oracle and HP. Besides,
due to the support of open source as well as the government theme of
"safety first”, many government authorities and corporations have shifted
fo use Linux software. However, seeing that the market capitalization of
Red Hat in the United States surged to more than US$3 billion, and
Novell's acquisition of SuSE, a linux company in Europe, at a consideration
of US$0.21 billion, our Thiz, given its sophisticated technology, is certain
fo be able to do more for a greater achievement. To assiduously work
fowards its fargef of promoting the application of Linux, the Group believes
that talents is an essential and vital factor. Currently, the number of Linux
talents are limited in the Greater China region. During a conference of
three nations, namely China, Japan and Korea, on the topic of common
Linux platform, it was clearly pointed out that supply of Linux falents is the
key to success. Despife linux has achieved outstanding performance in
the web server market, it is yef to become popular for other commercial
applications and desktop application and this still takes time and effort.
To overcome the obstacle on popularity of Linux, the Group first launched
Thiz BEST, which is a sophisticated Linux professional fraining programme.
Combining it with the "1+1+1 Project”, the Group set up 10 fraining
centres of which 3 were situated in Beijing and the remaining located in
Dalian, Changchun, Shenyang, Shanghai, Nanjing, Fuzhou and Xian
respectively. The Group strives fo nuriure senior network administration
engineer and software development engineer, so as fo strengthen the
key fundamentals to the greater vision of “Benefiting Our Country, Our
People and Ourselves”. After graduation, those students will be arranged
for an internship in Thizlinux Insfitutes for six months, practicing research
and development of Linux application software. Through such kind of
fraining programme, shorfage of professionals and under-supply of Linux

commercial application software will be subsided. More particularly, the

fraining programmes will bring substantial cash inflow and nurtured
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

numerous prominent Linux engineers, project managers and senior
technology teachers for the Group. The teaching materials of Thiz BEST
Infernational Certification prepared by the Group are not only customized
fo its needed professionals, but also to technology base of the external IT
professionals in different industries. Universities generally put emphasis
on theory but not practice and professionalism, our teaching materials
have completely eliminate such deficiency. Through training to nurture
talents for our Group, other enterprises and the country, we will complete

our first step in popularizing Linux software.

Prospect

With the success in promoting Thiz BEST “1+1+1 Project” sophisticated
Linux professional fraining programme in China, the Group intends fo
expand the education centres in China, Hong Kong and Taiwan from
10 in 2003 to 30 by the end of 2004. The Group also plans to expand
to 50 education centres by the end of 2005. It is expected that the
number of graduates will increase substantially from 1,000-2,000 in
2004 1o 3,500-5,000 in 2005. In response fo the facts that the graduated
students will infern in Thizlinux Institutes to practice six months for the
research and development of application software, the Group plans to
set up five more Thizlinux Institutes in Beijing, Dalian, Shanghai, Xian
and Shenzhen, in China. The capacity of each institute will be 400 to
600 students. There will be 1,000 and 3,000 Linux software engineers
in Thizlinux Institutes jointly parficipating in research and development
activities by the end of 2004 and 2005 respectively. Meanwhile, Thiz
will become the largest and the most influential Linux institute over the

world and Thiz products will swifily diffuse across every corer in the
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Chairman’s Statement

Greater China region. leveraging on its abundance of Linux professionals
by that time, the Group is cerfain fo see the bulk launching of reliable
application software products. In fact, coupled with cross duplication
and application of various products relating to “Thiz Easy Shop” and
Internet e-commerce produced by the branch company in Taiwan, the
generated power will give the Group sufficient momentum for
development, expansion and a sustained operation. Thus, the Group
defines 2003 is the year of contribution, 2004 the year of success and

2005 the bumper year.
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Business Review

Based on the confinuous development of our business, cerfain modifications

and adjustments had been made to our “Seven Core Businesses”

development strategy by the management of the Group:

N O AN

. development of supercomputer on Linux

implementation of e-government

designing of solutions for enterprises
development of e<commerce applications
development of innovative Linux education model
establishment of international strategic alliance

expansion of product distribution and direct sales channels

Apart from changing the fourth core from “introduction of distance

education” to "development of e-commerce applications”, other

components of the business development strategy had remained

unchanged. Running of the entire core businesses of the Group can be

subdivided info 3 major segments:

. Taiwan segment

The business development had focused on the “Thiz Easy Shop” and
online business town, known as "Owners Zone". The Group
developed the "Thiz Easy Shop” by combining the Linux's software
technology in server with the Infernet commercial applications and
had them bundled info a server hardware, giving all people who
want fo try running their own businesses an opportunity fo realize
their dream. Our "Thiz Easy Shop” enables its owner fo easily upload
as many as 70,000 pictures and products fo the shelf. Such function
is believed to have overcome the limitation of the current ecommerce
applications in their inability fo make instant product information
update. It also enables information of new products to be available
around the globe in real time through the Internet. In addition, all

owners who have purchased our “Thiz Easy Shop” would have their
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web shop listed on the Group’s “Owners Zone” website
(ownerszone.com), allowing them to share the browsing rafe of the
website and fo help open up new business opportunity for them.
Furthermore, assisting personnel would be sent fo give advices and
fo frain inexperienced business owners in operating a business. The
Group has invested substantial talent and other resources in the
development and continuous modification of the “Thiz Easy Shop” as
well as the design of the "Owners Zone". We are opfimistic that the
"Owners Zone" will develop info the biggest online business town in
Taiwan in the near future. On the other hand, operation of the B2B
business town (thizbiz.com) will also be commenced soon, inheriting
the strength of Linux in its capacity of remote service and mainfenance
in server computer, and complemented by the concept of
supercomputer development (clusters run on network). Currently, major
portals like Google, Yahoo and Amazon are all using linux servers,
demonstrating that the combination of Linux supercomputer and Internet
ecommerce applications offers a perfect partnership and is probably
the best alternative as far as cost is concerned. Adding fo such
advantage will be the expected growth in popularity of the 64-bit
computers in the next 2 years. As a result, the momentum of e-
commerce applications would be much greater than it is now. The
future of development of Thiz Group's Taiwan arm will be building
upon the joint force of a commercialized operation, support of Linux
and software applications. We also intend to promote and apply

this successful model to other regions and markets.

. Hong Kong segment

The Group had been focusing on the upgrade of existing products
such as the upgrade of Linux deskiop product from Thizlinux Desktop
7.0 10 8.0, upgrade of office application software from ThizOffice
4.0 10 5.0, upgrade of server system software from ThizServer 6.0
to 7.0, upgrade of anfivirus software from Thiz AntiVirus 6.0 to 7.0,

upgrade of firewall and intrusion defection system from ThizFirewall
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6.010 7.0, and upgrade of Thiz Database from Thiz Database System AREBZG A Thiz Firewall 6. 0FHZE ﬁ
1.0 t0 2.0. We also launched a new product, the Highly Available 7.0 - BNEF 8% & R FEE Thiz Database ér
Cluster Application ThizHAT.0. Most significantly, in addition to our System 1.0 FAAZE 2.0 RFELERS N%
desktop product which has received LSB1.3 international certification, ATAREAThizHA 1.0 - ZEZEMER T §
the Group's newly launched 64-bit server Thiz Super IA 64 Server SEEMERS LSBT . 3R EIFRREAIN - g
7.0 also received LSB 1.3 international certification, the first ever B HE 7 EE G 64 RLTTART 8% Thiz Super <
and the only one in Asia, ranking it alongside with Red Hat of the IA 64 Server 7 OTMERF T MNE— & - 2

United States and SuSE of Germany. The key strategy of the business B At 2 e e — &) —fELSB 1. 38V EIRR

of the Hong Kong segment is on development of software that meets R - ERZEE Red Hat ~ 18 SuSE #9

the requirements of international certifications and international —BUbRI SR - BAMREENR
standard, thereby gaining the leading status in Linux in Asia. On the B ERRE B P R BB SR & B

other hand, the Group has established Institute of Thiz Technology in AR BB - (M ERIS SR Linux B9 4%

Hong Kong which specializes in making of Linux teaching materials DEBHAL - BN EEEFBKILT

and has completed the planning and compilation of 15 Thiz BEST BORS R 226 - R Linux B8 B8 2061

teaching materials. These materials have provided the “1+1+1 Project” B3E - WA T Thiz BEST 15 P Y

training programmes in China with the first and only systematic, MBIEARSI - SERRES [1+

progressive and first-class teaching materials package for fraining of Bl BEINETR2HAE—E LEm—

Linux software engineers in the world. The entire programme can be B — BB Z5 - #ER - EE Llinux B

divided into 4 phases and 4 infernational certificates: the fundamental TRABEFHM - BERESKE

"B" series which consists of 2 “Thizlinux Certified Professional” courses B B e TSR BB BRI - {EEREE) [B] &

focus on deskiop and office applications; the web-related “E” series 5 HREHEBRPAEEAE (B

which consists of 3 “Thizlinux Certified Engineer” courses focus on B Linux FEFREE R ] 2 PIRRIE - BIEAEH

system administration, network administration and network security; [E] RZ7 HESHERE - HRERE -8

the software development related “S” series which consists of the w2 [BIRF Linux S REEERETE
fundamental database and PHP programming essential to the Bl &9 3PTRRIZ - BEIEMHRERIS] &
"Thizlinux Certified Network Software Engineer” programme (labeled B+ [ BNAF Linux A8 48 014 R 28 TARAD | 34

by the Group as S1), the C and C++ programming and principles of BB REIEE KPHPE S M2 (R

kernel essential to the “Thizlinux Certified System Software Engineer” SEFTARST) - BE| [ENE Linux R4E

(labeled by the Group as S2), the JAVA programming and advanced B TIRA ] WEBHC C++EF

database applications essential to the “Thizlinux Certified Application RIERARIRE (REBEFTEAS2) 19

Software Engineer” (labeled by the Group as S3). Through taking the
6 courses in S1, S2 and S3 programmes, becoming an outstanding

software engineer is a matter of time only. The “T" series is the last

BRI BIEFLinux B A BR(FF 3 TR2AM J %6
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and most advanced phase of the programme which concerns the
"Thizlinux Certified Total Solution Expert” and which includes 4
courses, namely advanced LAMP development and application,
advanced kernel development and application, advanced security
administration development and application, and advanced
embedded linux kemel development and application. These courses
are available only in the Thizlinux Institutes of the Group. The Group
aims fo frain up a large quantity of excellent engineers through
systematic, progressive, scientific and professional methods and
thereby fulfill its underlying vision of "Benefiting Our Country, Our

People and Ourselves”.

. The PRC segment

The Group’s PRC arm had enfered info cooperative agreements with
16 fop university software institutions designated by the State in relafion
fo software donation as well as the establishment of Linux development
and fraining centres. Among them include Peking University, Beijing
University of Aviation and Astronomy, Tianjin University, Nankai
University, Northeastern University, Dalian University of Technology,
Northwestern Polytechnic University, Xi'an Jiaotong University,
Shanghai Jiaotong University, East China Normal University, Nanjing
University, Southeastern University, Zhejiang University and Sun Yar-

sen University.

Secondly, the Group had completed 2 course materials under the co-
operating project with China Electronic Information Application
Education Centre of Ministry of Information Industry of China. One of
the courses was about the theory and application of Linux deskiop
and office, the other was about the theory and application of Linux
system and network. The 2 course materials had been selected as
required study materials for the national examination of information

technology. With the effort of promoting Linux education and
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examination to the whole country, the sftatus of Thizlinux as a household
name will be further enhanced, thereby consolidating its leading

position in China and Asia.

Furthermore, under the leadership of Beijing Municipal Commission
of Science and Technology, the representative of “1+1+1 Project” of
Beijing Software Indusiry Promotion Cenfre and the CEO of the Group
had participated in the “Unification of Linux Platform in China, Jopan
and Korea” Conference. In the 3 nations conference held in Osaka,
Japan, the Chinese representative, Officer Hu from Beijing Software
Industry Promotion Centre delivered a speech on professional training
and about the “T+1+1 Proiect" and implementation in co-operafion

+1+1 Project”, Thiz was committed to

,000 Linux engineers and 10,000

with Thiz. According fo the
frain up 100 Linux teachers, 1

Linux users.

Based on the “1+1+1 Project”, the Group had established a personnel
fraining industry chain. In such system, students (who should be
university graduates with degree in science or engineering or college
graduate in computer-related disciplines) would attend a é-month
fraining programme and complete the 11 courses under the "B”, “E”
and "S" series of the Thiz BEST programme. After passing the
examination, the students would be sent to Thizlinux Institutes to have
a 6-month internship and to complete a minimum of one research
and development project. Afterwards, through the personnel
department of Thiz, they would be assigned fo specific positions in a
wide variety of industries to start off their careers. Possessing
fundamental knowledge in theory and application, not only would
these students be awarded with the Thiz BEST infernational cerificates
and proof of qualification by Institute of Thiz Technology, they would
also be given permanent email addresses under thizlinux.org and
life-long privilege of attending the Group's forums and seminars for

free. We believe that as these students enter into the industries they
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are going fo serve, they will be able to excel and become potential
leaders in their organizations, leveraging on Thiz's powerful research
and development strength as well as interactions among fellow students
and teachers. Furthermore, they will also help the Group to extend ifs
business reach and strengthen its product promotion force. Response
fo the “1+1+1 Project” training programme had been enthusiasfic.
The project originally set fo run for 3 years, but out of our expectation,
as many as 400 students were recruited during the 4 months from
September fo December 2003. This group of students would eventually
graduate after April 2004. In fact, a lot of them had already secure
a good job before graduation. We believe such frend would continue
and further extend in 2004. We are hopeful that Thiz would help
frain up as many as 2,000 to 3,000 competent Linux software

engineers for the country in 2004.
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Financial Review

Financial highlights

The consolidated tumover of the Group for the year ended 3 1st March,
2004 was HK$37,415,000 (2003: HK$64,152,000), representing
a decrease of 41.7% compared fo the previous year. The significant
decrease in revenue was brought by the termination of a major contract
for distribution of the Group's Linux based software products due fo breach

of confract by the customer.

In line with the significant decrease in turnover, gross profit for the Group
decreased from HK$48,768,000 in 2003 to HK$21,565,000 in
2004, while the gross profit margin dropped from 76.0% o 57.6%. The
major reason for the decreases in gross profitability was due to decrease
in the distribution of the Group's Linux based software products that had

a much higher profit margins.

During the year, provision for doubtful debts of HK$ 13,048,000 [2003:
HK$11,109,000) had been made for several outstanding trade debtors.
The Group had actively taken procedures to demand seftlements and

had undergone legal proceedings in cerfain cases.

Total operating costs were approximately HK$22,516,000 (2003:
HK$31,025,000). As a percentage to turnover, this represent an increase
from 48.4% in 2003 to 60.2% in 2004.

Loss aftributable to shareholders and loss per share for the year were

HK$13,353,000 (2003: profit of HK$7,135,000) and HK$0.73 cents
(2003: earnings of HK$0.43 cents| respectively.
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Financial Review (confinued)

Capitalization

During the year, the Group had capitalized operating costs of
approximately HK$4,172,000 (2003: Nil) in respect of development
of the Group's linux products, proprietary training materials and

e-commerce application systems.

Segment information
The Group is principally engaged in three business segments in four
geographical regions. The Group presented its segment information based

on nature of their operations and the products and services they provided.

Financial resources and liquidity

As at 31st March, 2004, shareholders’ funds of the Group amounted to
HK$25,429,000 (2003: HK$30,475,000). Current assets amounted
to HK$40,997,000 (2003: HK$36,145,000),
HK$2,542,000 (2003: HK$1,212,000) were cash and bank deposits.
Current liabilities of HK$9,043,000 (2003: HK$5,906,000) mainly

of which

comprised of its frade payables, other payables and accruals, and

amounts due fo Directors. Current ratio of the Group was 4.5 (2003:
6.1).

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had nef current assets of
approximately HK$31,954,000 (2003: HK$30,239,000). The

Directors considered the Group's liquidity position was healthy.

MER (&)

= E:N |

FA - AKBFABEAEEZ Linux Edh
ERERIEMEEFTHERBAEAGHN
4,172,000 (ZTZ=F : T) v &&
RAB AL o

2TEER
AEETERMEMmRET =X - A&
B ERAEEBEE MR M 2 Em MRS 2
SRR EER -

BRERRRBES
R-ZTTWF=A=+—8 ' FEEZRE
BE&E 25,429,000 8T (ZEE=F:
30,475,000%7m) - RBEEAH
40,997 000 #Bx (ZTET=%F:
36,145,000/ 7T) + & 2,542,000%7T
(ZZTZT=%:1,212,000 %) AEER
RITIFRK 5&@11&%9,043,0005%71 (==
T4 :59006,000#m) EBREMNE
R BtENRERES BRUARENES
I AEERBLER 4.5 (ZEE=
Fr61) o

RIZBTNF=A=+—0H  FXEEZRE
BEFMELNR31,954,0008w (ZFF=
F : 30,239,000 87T) - BEERRAEHE
MEBNVEEMISRE -




Management Discussion
and Analysis

EEENWED N

Financial Review (confinued)

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of total liabilities over
shareholders’ funds as at 31st March, 2004 is 90.6% (2003: 32.5%).
The increase was due to the further issue of HK$ 10,000,000 unlisted
converfible nofes and increase in trade deposits and funds advanced

from the Directors during the year.

Unlisted convertible notes

On 26th March, 2004, the Company entered info a subscription
agreement with certain subscribers for the issue of convertible notes with
the principal amounts of HK$ 10,000,000 which bear interest at the
rate of 2.5% per annum with maturity on 25th March, 2007. The nofes
are convertible into new shares of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.036 per share (subject to adjustments). Details of the
issue of convertible notes are set out in the Company’s announcement on

20th March, 2004.

At the balance sheet date, the Company received the subscription money
for the aforementioned convertible notes and classified them as non-
current liabilities. The issue of these notes was completed on 6th May,

2004.

There were also HK$4,000,000 unlisted convertible notes bearing interest
of 2.5% per annum, with maturity on 16th January, 20006, issued in last
year. The nofes are convertible info new shares of the Company at a

conversion price of HK$0.036 per share.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

Financial Review (confinued)
Exposure to foreign exchange risk
The functional currencies of the Group's operations are Hong Kong dollars,

Renminbi ["RMB") and New Taiwan Dollars (“NT$”). The Directors consider

that the potential foreign exchange exposure of the Group is limited.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities
As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had no charges or pledge of assets

and material contingent liabilities.

Capital commitments

On 28th March, 2002, a joint venture agreement was enfered info by
the Company, Eaglemax International Investment Limited ("ElIL"), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, and Beijing Normal
University ("BNU") in relation to the formation of a sinoforeign equity
joint venture, JingShi Thizlinux Laboratory Stock Company (the “JV”).
Pursuant fo the joint venture agreement, the Company, Elll and BNU are
committed to contribute RMB 15,000,000, RMB 15,000,000 and
RMB20,000,000 respectively for their respective inferests of 30%, 30%
and 40% in the JV. However, there is no payment schedule specified in

the joinf venture agreement.

On 3rd June, 2002, the Company, EllL and BNU entered info a joint
venture supplemental agreement whereby the three parties agreed fo set
up/develop the 100 JingShi Thizlinux Internet Course Programmes (the
"Programmes”). Under the joint venture supplemental agreement, each
of the Company and EllL is committed to investing RMB 10,000,000 for
the development of the Programmes whereas BNU will be responsible
for the development, design of the courses and the provision of course
confents. There is no investment schedule specified in the supplemental

agreement.
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Financial Review (confinued)

Capital commitments (continued)

Subsequent fo the date of entering info the supplemental agreement,
BNU intended to agree with the Company and EllL to fix the timeline for
investments in the Programmes by the end of June 2002, this was

disagreed by the Company and EllL.

As advised by the PRC lawyers, the disagreement amongst the three
parties has made the whole contractual arangement incomplete and,
accordingly, all the three parties to the agreements are no longer committed

to invest in the JV and the Programmes.

Employees and remuneration policies

Human resource capital is @ major resource of the Group. The Group
recognised this by providing substantial opportunities on the job, and
encourage personal development and fraining of the staff.

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had about 110 employees, including
Directors of the Company. Tofal staff costs for the year under review
including Directors’ remuneration amounted fo approximately
HK$14,718,000 (2003: HK$15,071,000). The overall workforce had
been very stable and turnover rate remains very low. The staff were
remunerated based on their work performance, professional experience
and prevailing market practices. In addition to basic salaries and
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, the Group also offered staff benefits
including medical insurance, share options, performance bonus and sales

commission.
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Management Discussion

and Analysis

BB WD

Use of Proceeds

The proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company pursuant to @

placing in July 2001 after deduction of related expenses, amounted fo

approximately HK$26,000,000. Included in the above net proceeds of
HK$26,000,000, approximately HK$5,100,000 and HK$5,000,000

was planned to provide additional working capital of the Group and

reserve for future investment opportunities or contribution to other joint

ventures for the development of Linux solutions respectively. The remaining

net proceeds was planned and applied up to 31st March, 2004. The

excess amount used had been financed by the above-mentioned working

capifal and reserve.

Confribution to the joint ventures to develop AEEEBERE Linux
application software on Linux FERE T

Sefting up sales office in Beijing AL RRIHENFR

Markefing and promotion mSHERENEE

Enhancement of the Group's existing Linux products SR AKBIRE Linux Ef

Development of web applications and other PR EAREA R EM
computing products/services BRER/ R

Purchase of hardware equipment BERMARME

Tofal CES

* Amounts are exfracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 20th July,

2001 issued in relation fo the Company’s placing and proposed listing of

shares on GEM.
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planned up to utilized up to

31st March, 2004* 31st March, 2004
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3,000 4,684
3,000 4,588
2,000 8,384
500 3,861

400 979
15,900 26,000
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Progress Against Business Objectives

Develop application software on
Linux platform with joint venture

partners

HMAESRHLRME
Linux - & FE 8

Business objectives

up fo 31st March, 2004
as stated in prospectus
fo & Eizfrat
BE-_TTNF
=A=t—RHz
XGEE

Start development work of
point of sale system with

Yuan Wang

Launch Web-based education
platform

Start development work of
logistics management system
with Yuan Wang

Start development work of office
information system with

Yuan Wang

Start development work of
personnel management system
with Yuan Wang

Launch point of sale system

iR PRFAEEHES
FEETE

BB BT

BERBEMYIMEE RS
FIZE T 1E
HRBREANANEEERSR
FET1E
HREEMASEEZS
FsE T

HHHERER

ENEHRRAERESNERZLR

Actual business progress
up fo 31st March, 2004
BE_TTHF
=A=T—R2
BEREBEE
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The software development plan with
Yuan Wang has been suspended.
Instead, the Group has developed
and markefed its own “Thiz Easy Shop”
System

The project has been postponed and
expected to be launched in 2005

The development plan has been

suspended (as discussed above]

The development plan has been

suspended (as discussed above]

In the course of studying the possibility
of development inhome

Suspended
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Marketing strategies
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Progress Against Business Obijectives (continued)

Business objectives

up fo 3Tst March, 2004
as stated in prospectus
A= E s Iple
BE_TTHF
=HA=t—-R2

Ey sk

Road show four in the
PRC, Hong Kong to promote
the Group's Linux products

RAAE - HEETKEEERE
HEALEBR 2 linux Em

EBEREEREBEEZLR (&)

Actual business progress
up fo 31st March, 2004

HE—_ZTTNF
—A=+—H82
BEREREE

The Group is actively promoting
Linux products in various universities
and educational insfitutions in the
PRC through ifs training programmes

in the Greater China Region
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Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Chairman

Mr. Llin, aged 50, graduated from the Economic Faculty of Taiwan
University and had involved in research studies in Harvard and Standford
Business Schools. He had been the Vice President of Holtek Semiconductor
Manufacturing Co., lid. Besides, he had also been the Chief Financial
Officer of United Microelectronics Corporation, a semi-conductor
manufacturer whose shares are listed in the Stock Exchange of Taiwan,
and had been working there for about 18 years. He has in-depth
knowledge in financial management. He was appointed as Executive

Director and Chairman of the Group on 24th December, 2002.

Ms. Wanzi Huang

Deputy Chairman

Ms. Wanzi Huang, aged 29, is the Deputy Chairman and a founder of
the Group. She had about 8 years’ experience in computer trading and
international tfrading. She is responsible for markefing the Group's Linux
products to computer manufacturers in the U.S.. Ms. Huang graduated
with a Bachelor's Degree in Administration in Fundagao Getulio Vargas

in Brazil.

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Executive Director

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, aged 49, is an Executive Director and a founder
of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 26 years’ experience in sales and
markefing, in parficular in electronics and computer industries. Mr. Wong
was the Chairman of Association of Electronic Components Industry of
Taipei from 1990 to 1993. He oversees the sales and marketing strategies
of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from the Depariment of Industrial

Management of Tamsui Oxford College in Taiwan with a diploma.
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Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Zhe

Ms. Li Zhe, aged 34, is a qualified PRC lawyer. Ms. Li graduated with a
Bachelor's Degree in Economic Law from Zhongshan University, the PRC,
a Master’s Degree of Business Administration from Murdoch University,
Australia and a Postgraduate Diploma in Llaw from the Manchester
Metropolitan University of the United Kingdom. Ms. Li has served a number
of law firms in the PRC and Hong Kong. She was appointed as an

independent non-executive Director in July 2001.

Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward

Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward, aged 43, is a solicitor and pariner of Messrs.
Alfred Lam, Keung & Ko. He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree and is a
member of The law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Ko has been practicing
as a solicitor in Hong Kong for more than 13 years. Mr. Ko was appoinfed
as an independent non-executive Directors of the Company in January
2004. Mr. Ko is also independent non-executive director of U-Cyber
Technology Holdings Limited, Sinochem Hong Kong Holdings Limited
and Guo Xin Group Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management
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Senior Management

Mr. So King Yan

Mr. So King Yan, aged 29, is the R&D Manager of the Group, overseeing
Linux development projects. Mr. So has over 11 years of experience in
computer and Linux programming. He graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree and Master of
Philosophy Degree in Computer Science and Engineering, and had
conducted research on mobile file system in Linux. Prior fo joining the
Group in August 2001, he had involved in the design and development
of a marketing platform based on J2EE technology using Weblogic and

Oracle on linux platform. He also tutored undergraduate computer courses

on linux at The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Sai Yan

Mr. Chan Sai Yan, aged 29, is the Financial Controller of the Group,
and Company Secretary, Qualified Accountant and Authorised
Representative of the Company, and is responsible for the Group's
accounting, finance, human resources and administrative functions. Mr.
Chan has over 7 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration in Hong Kong. He graduated with a Bachelor's Degree in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and is an
Associafe Member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Prior fo joining the Group, he was financial accountant of Liv Chong

Hing Investment Limited. He joined the Group in December 2002.
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for

the year ended 31st March, 2004.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividend
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2004 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 50.

The direcfors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect

of the year ended 31st March, 2004.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five
years ended 31st March, 2004 is set out on pages 108 to 109

respectively.

Fixed Assets

The Group purchased fixed assets amounted to approximately
HK$654,000 during the year. Details of movements in fixed assets of
the Company and the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial

statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year

and the reason thereof are set out in note 22 1o the financial statements.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 24 fo the financial statements and the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 55 respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31st March, 2004, the Company’s distributable reserves amounted
to HK$4,838,000.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed

or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The directors who held office during the year were:—

Executive directors:
Mr. Lin Chien Hsin
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Ms. Wanzi Huang

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Li Zhe
Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward
(appointed on st January, 2004)
Mr. Kwok Ming Wa
[resigned on st January, 2004)
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Directors’ Report

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong shall retire and, being eligible, offers himself for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Ms. Li Zhe and Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward were not appointed for a
specific term as they are subject to retirement and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company'’s

Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Ms. Li Zhe and Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward shall retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for reelection at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than sfatutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed his/her
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM) (the "GEM Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31st March, 2004 and the Company considers

the independent non-executive directors fo be independent.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions as disclosed in note 31 fo the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material inferest subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share optfion scheme [the “Scheme”), which
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 6th July, 2001, for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who
confribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include any fulltime executive director or employee of @
company within the Group. The Scheme shall remain in force for 10
years from 6th July, 2001 during which the directors may make offer to

grant share options fo eligible participants.

Pursuant fo the ferms of the Scheme, the maximum number of share options
permitted fo be granted is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the Company's shares in issue as at the dafe of commencement
of dealings of the Company's shares on the GEM unless further
shareholders’ approval has been obtained (See remark (i) and the
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
participant in the Scheme shall not exceed 25% of the maximum number
of share options which may be granted under the Scheme (See remark

(if)).
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’E Share Option Scheme (continued) MEEs® (&)

% Remarks: Since the adoption of the Scheme on 6th July, 2001, Mz : RZTZ—F+EANBHEMEIE -

amendments have been made to Chapter 23 of the GEM BIZR ETARRISE 23 =B R

% Listing Rules in respect of Share Option Scheme whereby if SHEIVRECERERT - Bt - A

% the Company wishes to continue to grant options under the RAHR_TZ—F+A—Hz &

E Scheme on or after 1st October, 2001, it must also comply EBRBTEIR HBRGE - BIARS

%_ with the requirements setf out therein. ERFAERE ©

&

§5 (i) with effect from 1st October, 2001, the maximum number i) BZZZ—F+A—H RE

_g of the Company’s shares which can be granted under the FT &I RAEAA A 5T &I 7] T4 )

’% Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 10% of ARRRM BB RZTFEBR

= the Company’s shares in issue at the date of approval. HEBBHARARSHITRND
10% -

(i) with effect from 1st October, 2001, the maximum number li) BZZT—F+A—Hi& RfE
of the Company’s shares which can be granted to each W+ EAARARTER2HEA
participant must not in any 12-month period exceed 1% T2 ARRRMNEBE RZTFHE
of the Company’s shares in issue. BARFIDEITRD 1% ©

Any grant of share options to a connected person (as defined in the  MEAEAT (F&EFAIZER LTHRA) HH
GEM Listing Rules) must be approved by the independent non-executive  {EfAI iRV BEIS B T IEHITE S 24
directors. Where share options are proposed fo be granted to a connected /& © fWi#kAIBIEA TR AR EEZRE (F
person who is also a substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM  FE R BIZEIR LT RAI) s S FMBEALT
Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of his/her respective associates, — #HIEARE - MR L 2 B EZ A EE
and the proposed grant of share options, when aggregate with the options A +fE#A+ =8 A BE R ER L 2 Bk iE
already granted to that connected person in the past 12-month period,  HEMBEEEREFSE R AR EREEHITR
would entitle him/her to receive more than O.1% of the total issued share — ZAN4BFEFRIEO.1% - BFERI(EERELS,000,000
capital of the Company for the time being and the value of which is in 7T » TEZBER T - B EIREERBES
excess of HK$5 million, then the proposed grant must be subject to the  ARATIRRIERRASHAE - FRAB °

38 approval of shareholders of the Company in general meetings.
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Share Option Scheme (continved) BRiEsy (&) f
The consideration for the grant of an option is HK$1 each. An option &R & 2 BERERE R 1B - MERE 3
may be exercised at any time during a period as defermined by the ~ FIREHETE 2 BAFBERTE - HEZHAME <
directors which shall not be less than three years and not more than ten  FRAR AT S8 TR B Biest - T é
years from the date of acceptance of opfions offered under the Scheme AR =M X HHEB+F - 0_2
by the grantee. 3
<
A summary of the movements of the share options granted under the — FRIRIFFTEIR L 2 BAREESISLAOT ¢
Scheme during the year is as follows: —
Number of share options
MERENE
Adjustment for
Outstanding  rights issue of Outstanding Exercise
Name of as at Company’s as at price Exercise
director 1.4.2003 shares 31.3.2004  Date of grant  per share period
RZSE= wELFRSL RISSHmE
mA—A ZHBRER =ZA=+-H =14
EEnE AR{TE AR RAR{TE i B TR TR
[Note 2) [Note 2) [Note 1)
(FfzE2) (Kt 2) (Bt 1)
HKS
BT
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong 1,640,000 179,014 1,819,014 21st November, 0.284 30th June, 2002
FHlELE 2001 fo 29th June, 2012
—FEF e
+—R=+—H ~AZTEE
—E-CF
~AZThA
Ms. Wanzi Huang 16,540,000 1,805,423 18,345,423 21st November, 0.284 30th June, 2002
BBMA T 2001 fo 29th June, 2012
—TTF -
+-A=1+-H ~AA=THE
—T-=F 39
~AAZTIA
18,180,000 1,084,437 20,164,437
»

a \ )
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Directors’ Report

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price is to be defermined by the direcfors in its absolute
discrefion but in any event not less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the shares of the Company on the GEM for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date on which the relevant option is granted
to the employee; and (iii) the closing price of the shares of the Company

on the GEM on the dafe on which the relevant option is granted.

Notes:

1. The share options are fully vested on 30th June, 2002.

2. The exercise price and the outstanding number of options have been adjusted

for the rights issue of the Company’s shares on 24th October, 2003.

No share option was granted and lapsed during the year.

At 31st March, 2004, the number of shares to be issued under share
opfions granted under the Scheme was 20,164,437, representing 0.99%

of the issued share capital of the Company.

MeBRERE (&)
E=RRARHNBRETETEE  HER
A SER T =EhRSEIARFR
EE : (|2 ERMERAEER LG
BERE 2z AR RER 5 B EAIER 2 T
M8 ¢ R(iii) AR B R LA BB A
B HERIF R Z W E -

izt -

1. BEER -ZZ-FRA=THR2ERAEA
FA -

2. BEREZTEERRTEBREZEBEERA
RN -FZ=F+A - +HRETRO ZH
fREIRMEL AR -

FALBATABBARER LR -
R-ZEZOF=A=+—0 ' REFTEEL

ZBRBAER TRITRMEE 520,164,437
B AEARRRIEBITIRAR 0.99% -
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities of
the Company

As at 31st March, 2004, the interests or short positions of the directors
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO"), Chapter 571
under the Llaws of Hong Kong), which were nofified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant fo Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant fo Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be

nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:-

EFEREETRARRFLAFIRGZHEG

R-ZTNEF=A=1+—H FBEZRIR
TTRABRARRAIREDIHEESEE (E&
REBEDE 571 BB FLAEEE ([F
HFREIEGRGI]) FXVER) 2Bt - Rk
DREFFAEARIEE 7 LB RPIEXV
WE7 R8P HEMBEARFREEHAR

2
SARAR (TBRAT]) 2 #mslER (2
EIRIEE 7 M B ROIB BB ISR F W E
SRSEAZEDRIER) - IRIFEFEFNR
HIERDIF 35 2RAB RN %G ATl 2 &
otz R IR - SARRAIER EHARR
% 5.61 (FRBREARTE MBI 2 sk
SR Il
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities of
the Company (continued)

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
Type of interests and
number of shares held
BB RMmSKRAEEAE
Personal Other
Name of director interest interest
EENE BAER Hthiga
(Note)
(K1)
M. Lin Chien Hsin 353,000,000 -
TUNES i
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong - 397,200,000
FEBTAE
Ms. Wanzi Huang 86,459,000 -
EE 5 R

Note: These shares are registered in the name of Eaglemax International
Investment Limited ("EIIL"), a company owned by Infelligent Management
Limited (“IML") as the trustee of Intelligent Management Discretionary Trust,
a family discretionary frust, the objects of which include Mr. Wong Hoi
Wong, his family and any charity in the world. As at 31st March, 2004,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong held the entire issued share capital of IML. By
virtue of SFO, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong has an interest of such shares.

EFREETRARRELAFEBGZHE

(%)

(o) ZARAEBEREEBROZRE

Percentage

Number of the
of share Company'’s
options issued share
held Total capital

1 S

FR¥s ER{ITRE
kN E #at Bifkt
- 353,000,000 17.29%
1,819,014 399,019,014 19.55%
18,345,423 104,804,423 5.13%

it

FZHEA% 5 T LAEaglemax International Invest
ment Limited ([EIL]) 2 BEBLFE - #Z
A AlH Intelligent Management Limited
(MMLD) AR E(EFE Intelligent Man-
agement Discretionary Trust Z Z5EA H 17
A ZEEAXaABETIEAER
HFEBARZIREMESEE - R -2F
ME=ZA=+—08  FEEERFAE IM
2EEEITRA - KIEEF TGS

THEREREASRY 2 -




Directors’ Report

EEEHRS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities of
the Company (continued)

(b) Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March, 2004, none of the
directors has short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

equity derivatives of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March, 2004, none of the directors
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were nofified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, 1o be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing

Rules, to be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EERFERITHRARRELAFIEGZHE

(%)

(b) ZABRRMDRABRG ZER
BRAREREEN R_TTWF=A
=t—H  ZFESEHERNLARRZBN
SANTE T A 2 BRAR D P B (1A

R e

BARESHEEIN  R_TTMOF=A=1
—H - SESHMER AR A SEEARED
B (ERRBSRBERMEXV #B) 2K
7~ RO HEFHE T ARERES M
EIRPIEXVEE 7 K8 EHEMEARR
BRpre#EmE e (BREREEF IS
OB RGN FRE(FSA R E 2
HER)  FREEF LG ERDIFE 35215
AT IRX At 2 B iC it A 2 i smskag
B IRBAIFR ENRAE 5.61 FAM
EARF R RT RIS R -
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 March 2004, the following persons (not being the directors
and chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO as follows:—

Name of shareholders

Number of shares held

FEERZES

RZZZME=A=+—H #HEIFKH

EIRGIEXVERSE 2 R 3D HIFIE T HFH
KEREGHIE IO TERFE 2 Ereffpr

ek AR R - AR RESF 2 R

FREEZAT FFRAREERFETHA

8) mT:

Percentage of the Company’s

issued share capital

BB FrisB{n 8 B HELAFERTRFESL
EllL (Note) 397,200,000 19.46%
B (Afat)

Applied Component Techno|ogy Corporation 324,340,000 15.89%

BEREEROBRA

Note: The shares held in the name of EllL are duplication of the shares held by the
director, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2004, there was no person
[not being the directors and chief executives of the Company) who had
any inferests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

ZENEILEEFAZ B BEETHE
FEMBFAEBR 4L

et -

BREXBEEN  R_TTUF=A=1—
B BB EAAL GEARREZTRERTT

BAB) BEAESMERDIZEXVEE2 K&
3 BMESCIE T 3B 75 M B E 16D 3 330 1%
MERFE 2 B Mpraisk s AR ARG
HERNRESFZERHER -
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Management Shareholders’ Interests

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Inferests in Securities of the Company” and “Substantial
Shareholders' Inferests” above, as at 31st March, 2004, no other person
was individually and/or collectively entitled o exercise or control the
exercise of 5% or more of the voting power af general meetings of the
Company and was able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the

management of the Company.

Maijor Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 50.94% of the tofal purchases of the Group
and the purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted

for approximately 17.72%.

The sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 66.57% of the tofal sales for the year and the sales to the

largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 41.69%.

None of the directors, their respective associates and shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company) had any inferest in any of the

five largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.

Connected Transactions

Details of connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the

year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Competing Interests

None of the directors, the substantial shareholders or the management
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in
any business which competed with or might compete with the business of

the Group.

TEERRZER
BREXTEENEBITRABRARRRES
2| N [ EBRIRZ | METPTIRER
EFHN RZEEWFE=A=+—RH  #EH
AT B RMER K, o EERARREFIK
RARETESBHN EZREERER EA]
RARBERIEHETREETES -

FRERRMUER

FR - AAKELRKHERAERBIEAS
EREEAEEEX) 50.94% ~ MRS A IER AT
TEERBBRMER) 17.72% »

AEBRNAAEFMHEEGFREHER
BH66.57% » MEAREPHIHEEAGLH
41.69% °

BRESMA  BEARBEBEITRA 5% A
t2BF  WESAZBEALRARFR
R REAREEAKETALATS kM
FER P A (T4 o

MEXS
FRETT 2 BIFRIR LA RAIFTRRRER 55
IBEN I BIREME ST ©

mEHED

BECAES  T2RRIERERR (F
FRAER ETRA) AEMENEEEH
F ZEGH AT -
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Sponsor’s Interests

As updated and notified by the Company’s sponsor, CSC Asia limited
["CSC"), neither CSC nor any of ifs directors, employees or associates
had any interests in any shares of the Company or any member of the
Group, or any right fo subscribe for or fo nominate persons fo subscribe
for the shares of the Company or any member of the Group as af 3 1st

March, 2004.

Pursuant to the sponsorship agreement dated 19th July, 2001 entered
into between the Company and CSC, CSC will act as the Company’s
confinuing sponsor for the period from 27th July, 2001 to 31st March,
2004.

Compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing
Rules

The Company has complied with Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Lisfing
Rules concerning board practices and procedures during the year ended

31st March, 2004.

Audit Committee
The Company esfablished an Audit Committee in August 2001 with

written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.29 to 5.32 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The duties of the audit committee are to review and fo
provide supervision over the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group. The audit committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Li Zhe and Mr. Ko Ming Tung,

Edward.

During the year, the audit committee has met four fimes fo review the

results of the Group.

FEAZED
HIMARRBZREABFZEMNERAA
(TEFzEM]) FIERMZSHIER  R=F
EFE=A=1t—H  HaoMNLEENE
- REIBEAIRELEARFHIASEH
ERIR B A B Z R Ay A A
HHE A RBERERMARBARFHAE
BIEIR B R AR Z A o

BEARREERTNN 2 —FtA+
BRI ZRE AW BN =%
E—FLtATEHEZTNF=A=+
—HHEERERRAFEREA -

BFRIERLEHRAIE 5.34 £ 5.45 &

ARABRBE_TTMF=_A=1+—HBLF
EA—BEETRIERLEMRAES 345
S A5 GERESTERMEEFEFZMA

E °

FREAE
ARABR-ZTZ—F)\AREEIZER TR
A 5.2058 5 321§ BIREEE -
HR]REBERE - EREZE BB B8R
EHMEEARE MR RIEF M AEPE
EHE - ERZBEHMABEIFMITES
REZ L REAREEEK

WE

BEZZEERNFA  ARMBNREE  UE
BIARSEE 2 548 -
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Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint the refiring auditors, Messrs. PKF, is fo be

proposed at the forthcoming general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lin Chien Hsin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th June, 2004

B BED
ARAENEERRASG LIRERER &
BREZHMRERE AR -

REREZS

FE

W
B8 “BEMEARRHNA
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Auditors’ Report

BB R &

PKF

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

To the members of
Thiz Technology Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 50 to 107 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Company'’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statfements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those statements and fo report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. VWe do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

RERSTEAEHAT

EE
i
BB 1857

EREBER L2612

AR SEBR QA

(REgHSHEME L2 HRAE])

AZBENE T ERE S0E 107 B2
Wk ZSRENVRREBLERMN 2S5
FRAGRSL -

ESREBMEAZRE
RHEERNVPZMBHRRT) ERRES
2B - EREZFEERD VU BRE
B EFWARMEE 2GR LAE
BEMZEFETERR -

Agme EERRBEER AR - HZE
BRIFLBYER - YERZBRER®RE -
BRUEASN - AR BAD 2 & Al Ve E At
& o AZBE A ARE 2 AE - B
Hih AN+ 8B FREEEAEE -
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TR E

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate o the Company’s and the Group's circumsfances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order fo provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our
opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements. VWe believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as af 31st March, 2004
and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PKF
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28th June, 2004

BRzER

AZBMEIRRE B G AGEM 2 2 H
EAEITEZ T - ERBEBEAMES
ABZEMERRMEBRBLREEREGR
ZBE - MERIREENRET SRR
P2 EAMEET AL - FERA 2 &5 R
=RhEe ERQRE BERBEZARER

MERERERL RMHEZTEHE -

AL R B FEITER TR - 15
BRERZBER /LT 2 ER R EERE
% WEESRDERE  RUBHRRESHF
BEABRBRM - FHAEZHEE - £ED
BRE  NEZEENC M SRR AEE
HEBRLRERH - AMZBEMEERMZ
BERTHEERTIIERIEHAIERR -

BR
ARBMAB R EHRR B AREFRA TR
& BERRE EEER_TTNF=A=
T REERZFHIRN - RERBEREZ
HIEFEZEREMRERE  WIRBREEQ
AGRDI 2 B EZ RimE -

RO B HEERH
R B
&% “BEMEAATNE
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWRER

For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

Turnover EEE

Cost of sales $HE R

Gross profif A

Other revenue H A
Provision for doubtful debts RERE
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHER
General and administrative expenses ~ —RERITEE A

e (BR) ad

(Loss)/ profit from operations

Finance costs BERAK
Share of profit of a jointly FEAE — R RIS (%
controlled entity il

(Loss)/ profit before fax BRELAT (E518) & F
Tax g

(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders AR &ML (E5HB) & F
Dividend 95\
gk (B8R /&7

(Loss)/eamings per share

—&K ()

— Basic (in cents)

—#5% (L)

— Diluted (in cents)

Note
KfaF

HE-FEMF=A=+—ALFE

2004 2003
—EEmF —TT=
HK$’000 HK$'000

TFHETT FEIT

37,415 64,152
(15,850) (15,384)
21,565 48,768
746 422
(13,048) (11,109)
(3,259) (3,831)
(19,257) (27,194)
(13,253) 7,056
(100) (20}

- 99
(13,353) 7,135
(13,353) 7,135
(0.73) 0.43
(0.69) 0.43




Consolidated Balance Sheet meEERER

At 31st March, 2004 RZFEMF=A=+—H
2004 2008  ®
—BENFE  -TI=F il
<
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 S
Bat FEiT FET o
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBDEE :%
Fixed assefs BEBE 12 1,613 1,603 =
Product development costs E KA 14 5,862 2,633 g
Goodwill kS 15 - = £
7,475 4,236
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories FE 16 645 302
Trade receivables JEUBRTE 17 34,892 31,287
Other receivables, deposits H e Y 5RE -
and prepayments me MIANRIA 2,918 3,338
Amount due from a related company  FE—FB@EARFIE 18 - 6
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHETE 19 2,542 1,212
.....40997 36,145
DEDUCT: K
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENA R
Trade payables JE A BRIA 20 564 540
Other payables, accruals and H A A FRIE -
deposits received JEET R IE & B Wi & 4,376 2,009
Amounts due fo directors JETE =R 21 4,091 3,345
Tax payable FEETHIA 12 12
__________ 9043 5906
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEERE 31,954 30,239
39,429 34,475
REPRESENTING:— a1 :
SHARE CAPITAL A 22 20,411 16,461
RESERVES {5k 0 24 5,018 14,014
SHAREHOLDERS" FUNDS BREL 25,429 30,475
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERDAR
Proceeds of convertible notes TR AT R AR %
received in advance F{S5838 25 10,000 -
Convertible notes Bl E2i 26 4,000 4,000
39,429 34,475
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Direcfors on 28th  RZZZEMFA-+N\BAKESSHER
June, 2004 RREELT 51
Lin Chien Hsin Wong Hoi Wong
HEH EElE
Director Director

EF EF
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Balance Sheet EEAER

At 31st March, 2004 R-EFFE=H=+—H
2004 2003
—ZTZTME T =F
Note HKS’000 HK$'000
Mat FiET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERDEE
Fixed assets EEEE 12 82 142
Inferests in subsidiaries PGB B AR 2 13 38,702 31,382
38,784 31,524
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Other receivables, deposits H b e 08
and prepayments ’Re RIERRIE 1,120 1,037
Cash and bank balances e RIRITETT 5 28
v12s 1,065
DEDUCT: i
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENER
Other payable and accruals FO A FE SRR I SRR 527 380
Amount due to a director JEN —REEFHA 21 49 238
_____________ 376 ____¢6lI8
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEERE 549 447
39,333 31,971
REPRESENTING: — a8iF :
SHARE CAPITAL B*x 22 20,411 6,461
RESERVES =131 24 4,922 11,510
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS BREL 25,333 27,971
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAR
Proceeds of convertible notes TBUR AT AR =R
received in advance PS5 5008 25 10,000 -
Convertible notes Bl E S 26 4,000 4,000
39,333 31,971
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th  RZZEZEMESA T NALKESSIER
June, 2004 BRERTT
Lin Chien Hsin Wong Hoi Wong
HEH EslE
Director Director

- EF




mERTRER

BE—ETME=A=1—HILFE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

2004 2003 il
—TTmE ZET=5F =
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 &
Hiat TET FHET é
CASH FLOWS FROM BERXBZHQRE C—E
OPERATING ACTIVITIES é
<
(Loss)/profit before fax BFiAT (E18) %F (13,353) 7,135
Adjustment for:— R
Interest income FMESA (2) (8)
Inferest expenses FERX 100 20
Provision for doubitful debts RIREHE 13,048 11,109
Bad debts written off [l Eiche i - 560
Impairment loss of goodwill EER A - 686
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBETEERE - 288
Share of profit of a jointly FE(E— R R
controlled entity 1ZEE A - (99)
Depreciation e 577 561
Amortisation By 943 679
Operating profit before working LEESEIAZ
capital changes Pt 1,313 20,931
Increase in inventfories FEEmM (343) (285)
Increase in trade receivables JE U AR TR 38 0 (16,653) (37,105)
Decrease/increase) in other HEWIE - RS
receivables, deposits MIBARERL S ()
and prepayments 420 (556)
Decrease/(increase) in amount fEW —RI B BE N A
due from a related company RIERAL, (i) 6 (6)
Decrease in pledged time deposit B E U8 - 300
Increase/(decrease) in FETBRIEE A0, CRid)
trade payables 24 (366)
Increase/(decrease) in other HihpEftzRIE - et
payables, accruals and FIERE YIRS
deposits received 2, ORd) 2,267 (74)
Increase in amounts due to directors JETE = IR 746 3,280
Effect on foreign exchange HNESTE R B o &8
rate changes 9 1
Cash used in operations KEEBAR S (12,211) (13,880) 53
Interest received BHFIE 2 8
NET CASH USED IN BEXBGMARES R
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (12,209) (13,872)

%
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

GERERER (8)

For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Advance tfo a jointly controlled enfity

Payments to acquire fixed assets

Sales proceeds of fixed assets

Product development expenditure
incurred

Net cash outflow from acquisition
of a subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Proceeds of convertible notes

received in advance
Issue of convertible notes
Repurchase of shares

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31ST MARCH

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Note
KfaE

RREFDZHRERE

B TR RES R E
NERETEBEZ MK
HEEE & EMSRIA
R

WiE—RHEARZ
RentiFR 27

RRFHFAAG B0

MATHZHKRE

BATRAD PSR
BN BEITRX
TBU AR RIB P 1S SRIA

BITAIARRE
A )

MR EDZHESH

ReRBeSETARMN
/(WD) B8

REMZRER
ReSERE

R=ZA=t+—BHZHER
Be®ERE

ReRA&SFERAS R

RERRITEF

HE-FEME=A=1—AILEE

2004 2003
—gEmE  _TT=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Er TET
- (170)
(654) (1,419)
8 105
(4,113) =
- (48)
_________ (4759) (1,532
9[086 -
(788) -
10,000 =
- 4,000
- (1,999)
_________ 18,298 2001
1,330 (13,403)
1,212 14,615
2,542 1,212
2,542 1,212




Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

SRERABER

For the year ended 31st March, 2004 HE T F=F=+—HIFE g
-
Capital S
Share Share redemption Special  Exchange Accumulated S_
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total :8)—
BFHME C_‘O
(23 B 1] 1R RIS ERERE Rt #it é
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 -
T FHET FHET FHET FHET T FHET
(Note 24(i))
(st 24(i)
At 1.4.2002 R-ZBT_F
mA—H 16,545 19,573 = 360 5 (11,145) 25,338
Repurchase of shares EEAElPE) (84) (1,915) 84 - - (84) (1,999
Exchange adjustment HREB NI
on franslation of the BARE
financial statements of T FZ
foreign subsidiaries BE 7 H 2 - - - - 1 - 1
Profit attributable fo R IEME
shareholders el = - - - - 7,135 7,135
At 31.3.2003 and RZTT=F
1.4.2003 =A=1+—H
RZET=F
mA—AH 16,461 17,658 84 360 6 (4,094) 30,475
Rights issue of shares HAREE 3,950 5,136 - - - - 9,086
Share issue expenses BR1n B#ITH X - (788 - - - - (788
Exchange adjustment BEEIN
on franslation of the BEARIE
financial statements of WK Z
foreign subsidiaries B 5 A% - - - - 9 - 9
Loss attributable o AR FEfS
shareholders BB - - - - - (13,353) (13,353)
At 31.3.2004 et T
=A=+—H 20,411 22,006 84 360 15 (17,447) 25,429
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law
(Cap. 22 law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 6th December, 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM”)
on 27th July, 2001.

On 11th October, 2002, the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission approved the establishment of level 1 American
Depository Receipt ("ADR") program for the Company's shares in

the United Stafes of America.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of

these financial statements are set out below:—

(a) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and comply with Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
["SSAPs") issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
["HKSA") and are prepared under the historical cost

convention.

In the current year, the Group adopted SSAP 12 (revised)
"Income taxes” issued by the HKSA which is effective for the

current year's financial statements.

E_FTME= A=A —AILFE

TLXREH
ARARR_ZTRF+ - ARARE
RESHBRAE(—NA—FFIHRE
DI 22F  BiFARIER]) EFRSE
MK AEREERAT -

ARABHR -_EZ—FLA -+t
BERBHMAXZ AR AFRIER
(T8IZMR]) £ -

“2E-F+AT—R  ZEEAEX
SEASWERAAARDREDR
U E—FEMBHIFIOEE ([ADR)

el -

FESHBE
RV RRETPIRANZ EBGFTIK
REIIAOE -

(o) #HwWEREXE
I MEBRBEE B ARG RA
R UNABEGTAAE
(TEEgMAg]) Bhze
AEBER (TS EBE
A1) o BARSERARTIRIE LA
EHIfmRE -

RAEE  AEERQHELE
FHR A BN ST EBERIFE
1258 (&&5]) [FEH] @ X
RANEEZ AR EAS -




Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The principal effect of the implementation of SSAP 12 (revised)
is in relation to deferred tax. In previous years, partial provision
was made for deferred fax using the income sfatement liability
method, i.e. a liability was recognised in respect of fiming
differences arising, except where those fiming differences
were notf expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. SSAP
12 (revised) requires the adoption of a balance sheet liability
method, whereby deferred tax is recognised in respect of all
temporary differences befween the carrying amounts of assefs
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits, with
limited exceptions. The adoption of SSAP 12 [revised) had
no significant effect on the results for the current or prior

accounting periods.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to

31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up fo the effective dafe of
disposal, as appropriate. All significant intra-group
fransactions and balances have been eliminated on

consolidation.

BE_FTEMFE=A=+—HILFZF

2. FEEHBE (&)

(a)

(b)

mEBEE (&)
BETEFERERE 25 (e
7)) 2 X BEFEERNRERIA -
RIBEFE - BEHETIAKES
RABAMEROBE - AIREE
BRI EREHRAIE - TR
HERER LHREHRTEER
ZIERGISN - Bt EHERNE
1257 (RRER]) RERBEER
BRAEL  BRBREBRI - &
HEENBBEMBREAZR
E{E S E N B ERTOR A A
ERZERRERE 2GR EE
RELRTEHA L - KRS
AAEBERE 125 (KB ¥
AN BT SR HIRE 2 AE L &
BEAFE

.

Z .

RS
&

meE%

IRE TS MREM B AR T FEMN
BRARBESF=A=1+—HIt
ZEATEIER

RERYRBRHEZMBARE
REHRERKEAREXBEE
BRHERSIE RERBRM
) FEARE REERA - RER
REIEAEEAR S RAEHER
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration
over the atfributable share of the fair value of separable net
assets of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
stated in the consolidated balance sheet af cost less aggregate

amortisation and any impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over its

estimated useful life of not more than 20 years.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment], or in providing products or services within a
parficular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
are defermined before intra-group balances and intra-group
fransactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, excepf fo the extent that such infra-group balances
and fransactions are between group enterprises within a single

segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one

period.

WWFE=A=+—HIFFE

2. FEEHBE (&)

(c)

(d)
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Segment reporting (continued)
Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate

assefs, borrowings, corporate and financing expenses.

Revenue recognition
Distribution income of Linux based software products
developed by the Group is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of goods have been

fransferred to the buyer.

Income from fraining service is recognised over the period of

fraining.

Interest income is recognised on a fime proportion basis,
taking info account the principal amounts outstanding and

the inferest rates applicable.

HE—STMF=A=+—HILFE

2. FEEHBE (&)

(d)

(e)

DEERE (B)
ADBEHBETEBEMB R
TtEEE R tERY
R
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E_FTME= A=A —AILFE

2. FEEHBE (&)

()

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are sfated af cost less aggregate depreciation
and impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly affributable costs of bringing
the asset fo ifs present working condition and location for ifs
infended use. Expenditure incurred affer the assefs have been
put info operation, such as repairs and mainfenance, is
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional

cost of the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal of the fixed assets representing
the difference between the netf sales proceeds and the
carrying amounfs of the relevant assets is recognised in the

income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write down the costs of fixed
assets fo their estimated residual values on a straight line
basis over the following estimated useful lives:—

Computer equipment = 3 years
Office equipment - 3 years to 7 years

Furniture and fixiures = 5 years fo 7 years

(f)

BEEERTE

BEITE & B Ty AT & R
REAR - BEKABHEEERE
KB EZBRITEERR KB
TR E R 2 EMEEBIEK
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enferprise over which the Company has
control either directly or indirectly. Control is the power fo
govern the financial and operating policies of a company so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses. Income
from subsidiaries is recognised in the Company’s financial
statements on the basis of dividends declared by the

subsidiaries.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged fo the income statement as

incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capifalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly
defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable and can
be measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the
projects are technically feasible; and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure which

does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are amortised using a straight
line basis over the expected economic useful lives of the
products, subject to a maximum period of five years
commencing in the year when the products are put info

commercial production.

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(i)

(k)

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed at
each balance sheef date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an assef or
its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and
includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

Leases

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the ferms of
the leases fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged fo the
income sfatement on a straight line basis over the terms of

the relevant leases.

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

2. FEEHBE (&)
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1

(m)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, annual leave entitlements and the
cost to the Group of non-monetfary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by

employees of the Group.

Obligations for contributions fo retirement plans, including
confributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"| central pension scheme, are recognised

as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

When the Group grants employees options fo acquire shares
of the Company for nil consideration, no employee benefit
cost or obligation is recognised at the date of grant. When
the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount

of the proceeds received.

Convertible notes

Convertible nofes are separately disclosed and regarded as
liabilities unless conversion actually occurs. The associated
finance cost is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis while the associated costs of issue are charged

immediately fo the income sfafement when it is incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an oufflow of economic
benefits will be required to setile the obligation. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rafe that reflects current
market assessments of the fime value of money and, where

appropriate, the risks specific o the liability.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future event not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes fo the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,

they will then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency fransactions during the year are franslated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
fransaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the market exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Differences on foreign currency translation are dealt

with in the income statement.

The consolidated financial statfements are prepared by using
the net investment method such that the balance sheets of the
Company’s overseas subsidiaries are franslated in Hong Kong
dollars at the market exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet date, while their income statements are translated at
the average exchange rate for the year. Any exchange
differences arising on such translation are dealt with in the

exchonge reserve.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income sfafement because it excludes items of income and
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it

further excludes income statement items that are never taxable

and deductible.
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected fo be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assefs and
liabilities in the financial statfements and the corresponding
fax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred fax assefs are recognised
fo the exfent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill] or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at
each balance sheet dafe and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available fo allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred fax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is setiled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates fo items charged or credited
directly fo equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r)  Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
fo be related if they are subject to common confrol or common

significant influence.

(s)  Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats:
[i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment;
and (i) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical

segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group's business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject fo risks and retumns that are different
from those of other business segments. Summary details of the

business segments are as follows:—

(a)  the software development segment engages in development

and sales of Linux based software products;
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (confinued)

(b)  the computer products segment engages in B2B e-commerce

in respect of frading of computer products; and

[c) the training service segment engages in the provision of

fraining services on Linux based software.

In defermining the Group's geographical segments, revenues are
affributed to the segments based on the location of the customers,
and assefs are affributed fo the segments based on the location of

the assets.

E-FEMES =1 —ALFE

3. #EEHE (&)

b BRKESRSE UBEHEE
FHBIARANEENERE
P R

ot

(c] IBIRIE DM - 224 Linux BfF
Z I IARTS

HEEAEEZMESEMmE - WA
TREFMERE D  BERREE
FEEHLE] 7




Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Business segments

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

3. SE¥EH (&)
EBOE

The following fables present revenue, (loss)/profit and cerfain

assets, liabilities and expenditure information for the Group's

business segments.

Segment revenue:~
Sales fo

external customers

Segment resuls

Inferest income
Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

(Loss|//profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of profit of a jointly

controlled enity

(Loss)/profit before fox

Tox

(Loss)/profit atfributable

o shareholders

Software

development

KRR
2004 2003

(a)

Computer

products

2004

2003

TREFIANEBIREBE D 22U

A

(B8R JaMfETE

E - BENMAXER -

Training
services

BRI

2004

Consolidated
&8
2004 2003

ZPOME _TT-F “PBMEF _TT-F “PONF _TT-F “PPME _TT-F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$'000

T FEr TET TEr  TET FET TEx
Gl N
HETF
HREP 18,323 47776 15052 16376 4,080 37,415 6415
ARLE (3,047) 19452  (5400) (9,065 (4,200) (12,647) 10,387
MEYA 2 8
FARMA 748 414
FARBX (1,352) (3759
g% (B8) /7 (13,253) 7,056
BARK (1000 (20
Bl —RIER
IR - 99 - - - - 99

KA (B
/i
WA

RS
(B#R) /&H

(13,353) 7,135

(13,353) 7,135
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE—TTFE=A=+—HIFZF
3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. SmER (&)
(a)  Business segments (confinued) (a) EXB2E (&)
Software Computer Training
development products services Unallocated Consolidated
RERR EHER g b3 #&

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ZBEIME _S5-F “PEME —TT-F "REME _TT-F “PEME —TT-F TPEME _SE=F

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
F¥m TEr TEm TEr FER TEr TERT TEr TER  TERL

Segment assefs PREE 38907 33958 5,632 4674 2,706 - - - 47,285 38632
Unallocated assefs FOREE - = - - - - 1,227 1749 1,227 1,749
Total assefs AEMSE 38,907 330958 5,632 4,674 2,706 = 1,227 1749 48,472 40,381
Segment liabiliies PRERE 17,666 7,200 2,648 1,123 578 - - - 20,892 8,332
Unallocated liabilities FPRARE - - - - - - 2,151 1,574 2,151 1,574
Total liabiliies BEEE 17,666 7,209 2,648 1,123 578 - 2,151 1574 23,043 9906

Other segment information:~ HitpEEH
Depreciation Vil 13 358 110 92 296 = 58 111 577 561
Amortisation B 762 504 146 175 35 - - - 943 679
1,520 1,240

Capital expenditure BARY 3,964 927 290 458 572 - - 80 4,826 1,474




Notes to Financial Statements pE EL

For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE—TTFE=A=+—HIFZF
3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (confinued) 3. aWEH (&)
(b)  Geographical segments (b) RS E
The following tables present revenue, assets and expenditure TRETIARE BRI 5 2 W
information for the Group's geographical segments. A BERBXER -
Hong Kong Taiwan PRC USA Others Consolidated
L] B E %E HtE #e

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ZBPME CTTSF CBEME —TT-F CPENE —TT-F CPEME —TT-F “PPME —IT-F CBEME —TToF

HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEr TEm TEr FEwm TEr  TET  TEr  TRT  TET  FEmT  TExn

Segment revenue:~
RELUN
Sales to
external customers

HEFHREP 1,83 7030 18,334 48148 3,191 303 5,180 1542 9,527 7,129 37,415 064,152

Other segment information:~
HHEEAH
Segment assefs

PREE 40,115 35003 4,907 1,530 2,319 3562 - - 13 226 48,472 40,381

Capilol expenditure
BARY 3,892 157 849 446 85 781 - = - 90 4,826 1,474
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover represenfs the invoiced value of computer products sold

and Group’s Linux based software products distributed and training

income, after allowances for returns and discounts and net of value-

added tax.

An analysis of tumover and other revenue is set out below:—

Turnover:—
Distribution of Group’s Linux
based software products
Sales of computer products

Training income

Other revenue:—
Interest income

Sundry income

Total revenue

ES R
Linux X142 an
HEEMEM
FERIUEA

HAWA -
FEHA
FERUWA

LN

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

4.

EXBRBA
SEBELEMBRE R - AR E
BERR EHEMERRIHEAS
Linux B EE R S 3B IR 2 B 2
3 o

LEBNEMBADHTAOT

2004 2003
—STmE —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Er T#ET
18,323 47,776
15,052 16,376
4,040 =
37,415 64,152
2 8

744 414

746 422
38,161 64,574




Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):—

Cost of inventories sold

Cost of services rendered
Depreciation

Less: Amounts capitalised as product

development costs

Amortisation of product development costs

Minimum operating lease payments:—

Lland and buildings

Servers

Less: Amounts capitalised as product

development costs

Auditors' remuneration

Staff costs (excluding directors’
emoluments):—
Salaries and other benefits

Pension confributions

Less: Amounts capitalised as product

development costs

Impairment loss of goodwill
Interest on convertible notes
Provision for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off

loss on disposal of fixed assets

Net exchange loss/(gain)

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

5. B#Rm (BR) #F

BRiiaT (B8] aF

gk, (GEA)

TF%IA

BEETFEKA

AR

e

W REmA KA
BREARZ SRR

E o 7 3R PR AN 5
REMEZ &K
HEREE
T R AEF
fa) AR 2%

B IRE BN
BARBEAZER

72l

BIRA (TBEES
<)
¥ REAMET
BIRSHK

B IRE BN
BARBEAZEH

A ERE
AHARRRIRA B
RARRE
HEBTEEERRE
B (e FE

2004 2003
—ZTZTmE —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#EiT FET
15,032 15,033
818 S
636 561
(59) -
577 561
943 679
2,043 3,130
27 23
2,070 3,153
(255) S
1,815 3,153
200 228
12,483 12,608
481 342
12,964 12,650
(2,197) -
10,767 12,950
- 686
100 20
13,048 11,109
- 560
- 288
207 (9)
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a)

6. ESREAMNE

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

Directors (a) E=
Executive directors:— HITESE ¢
Fees we
Other emoluments H e
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMEA
Pension contributions RIRE R
Independent non-executive directors:— BIUEAITES -
Fees we
Total directors” emoluments E ) L

During the year, one (2003: one| of the executive directors
did not receive any emoluments. The other two (2003: two)
executive directors received emoluments of approximately
HK$1,127,000 (2003: HK$1,039,000), and
HK$507,000 (2003: HK$468,000) respectively. The
executive direcfor resigned in 2003 received emoluments of
HK$434,000 in the previous year. The newly appointed
independent non-executive director received emoluments of
HK$15,000. The other two (2003: two) independent non-
executive directors received emoluments of HK$60,000

[2003: HK$90,000) and HK$45,000 (2003: HK$90,000)

respectively.

2004 2003
—EEmE  —TT=7F
HK$000 HK$'000

FRT FHET

1,622 1,927

12 14

1,634 1,941

120 180
1,754 2,121

FR - —H(Z22=F: —%)
WITES W EWEEAE - 5
SR (ZTE=F : WE) #
TEEH»HIEEBME O
1,127,000 &7 (ZZT2=%F :
1,039,000 7T) & 507,000/
7T (ZZZ=%F : 468,000 %
TT) c RZEB=FREZHT
B FFEWERBE434,000%
TC o MRMEZBILIFMITESRI
H#< 15,000 87T - b
(ZZZ=F : WB)FEILIENT
B8 BIWEENE 60,000 78
7T (ZTZ =% : 90,000 & 7T)
K 45000 Bt (ZBE=%:
90,000 #7T) °
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE—TTFE=A=+—HIFZF

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 6. EER{ERE#ME (&)

(a) Directors (continued) (a) E=E (&)
The emoluments of the directors were within the following BEMEeN TLATEE :
bands:—

Number of directors

EFEAH
2004 2003
—ZTEZTME —EE=F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 7T 5 5
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 &=
1,500,000 /& 7T 1 ]
(b)  Five highest paid employees (b) TEESHEES

During the year, the five highest paid employees included FA - BEARSHESRERS
two [2003: three) executive directors of the Company, defails (ZZEE=F : =8) ARAH
of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of 1TEE - HMeFBERN EX -
the remaining three (2003: two) highest paid employees H#p=% (ZTT=F : M%)

were as follows:— =EEEEZMESMT
2004 2003
—ZZTmE —FTT=F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
Salaries and other benefits e hEMmET 747 1,079
Pension confributions IRRNE MR 30 19
777 1,098
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A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

6.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (confinued)
(b)  Five highest paid employees (continued)
The emoluments of the employees were within the following

band:—

Nil fo HK$ 1,000,000

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid employees, including directors of the Company, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of those
employees who are eligible to participate in the scheme. The MPF
Scheme has operated since 1st December, 2000. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assefs of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
confributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

6.

=% 1,000,000 7T

ExRERME (&)
(b) ZEBREHEE (&)
EEMEN FATEE :

Number of employees

RAAK
2004 2003
SEILER
3 2

AEEYBALER=HER
(BRARRES) MEME
RBEIMASIARE B2 228
SEERHEZ S -

B & EHE
REBERBRFIERTESEBIGM -
REMEBEARERSENIIZEEREM
ERBHIEATRR RGNS (58
BeErd])) - BEEFAIE—FTTT
F+-A—BRELER - AEEZER
EANFEADHELHK - RARE
s At SR AE HR R R ER
ANk - BB B2 BEEFRIBYL
BEES  BAKEEESRARKA °
REE BB SR EEL 2 B EHR
2EBRERMA °
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A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

7.

PENSION SCHEME (continued)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries
are required fo confribute a percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The cenfral pension scheme is responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the pension payments

on postrefirement benefits beyond the annual confributions.

During the year, the Group made pension contributions of

HK$489,000 (2003: HK$356,000).

HE—STMF=A=+—HILFE

7.

Br&td (&)
RAEBEEEZARNRAMBATZEE
ASEME T RTEE 2P REK
T3 c RETEMBARARS
B LRFRRBRAREEEIEL R -
PRERASET AN ZRBERKE
BZARRKE - AEEBANEFE
HRIASN 2 RIKRIBRIB R -

FR - AKEELRARSHK
489,000 B (Z2Z=F:
356,000 87T) -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE_—TEF=A=+—HIFE
8. TAX 8. W&
(a)  No provision for profits tax has been made as the Group ()  FEARZANEBRANE S I R R A
has no assessable profits for the year. AN I A4S AR
o
2004 2003
—2TNEFE —TT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Tax (income)/expense for the year can AEEFRE (WA)
be reconciled as follows:— STHEERNT ¢
(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (E518) &l (13,353) 7,135
Tax effect at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 12 17.5% (ZZZ =4 :
17.5% (2003: 16%) 16%) 2 BBFEH
MEAE BB E (2,337) 1,142
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses/tax FAIHFIF S~
exempt revenue RHRAZ BT E 692 (4,048)
Tax effect of unrecognised general AR RRIE—R
provision for doubtful debts BB E 270 584
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AERTRIBERZ
MBTE 1,599 2,324
Tax effect of utilisation of unrecognised FRAARBERTEBEZ
fax losses MG E (223) (30)
Tax effect of unrecognised REER (n) AR
(accelerated)/decelerated BB RS2
tax allowances (1) 28

Tax (income)/expense FRE (A T -




Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

8. TAX (continued)

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

8. Wm\ (&)
RHERAINB, (FERD) B

(b)  The components of unrecognised deductible/(taxable)

temporary differences are as follows:—

Deductible temporary differences AHREREER
(Note (i)) (Btat (i)
Unutilised tax losses RBARIBEEE
Decelerated tax allowances R TR
General provision for doubtful debis RER— MR

Taxable temporary differences ERBEREER
(Note (ii)) (HraE (i)
Accelerated tax allowances pilifEeRinkl

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Deductible temporary differences have not been recognised
in these financial statements owing to the absence of objective
evidence in respect of the availability of sufficient taxable
profifs that are expected fo arise fo offset against the deductible
temporary differences.

The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the PRC and Taiwan
subsidiaries amounted to HK$17,493,000 (2003:
HK$10,735,000) would expire in five years from the
respective year of loss. The unutilised tax losses accumulated
in the Hong Kong subsidiaries amounted to HK$ 17,715,000
(2003: HK$16,615,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.

Taxable temporary differences have not been recognised in
these financial statements owing to immateriality.

BEEMT
2004 2003
—gEME  —TT=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT T
35,208 27,350
43 39
5,193 3,649
40,444 31031
(90) (49)
40,354 30,982
Bst -

(i)

(ii)

HNRZ FEREIAE BT
B AR A B LA SR ]
bz B IEER - MUk
R HR AR AT iy
MER -

HERAERBARREZR
BFABIEEE 17,493,000 7%
7L (ZZEZ=4 : 10,735,000
BT B B 2 BREER
HEREWN - BEMBARR
Mz AS AN EEIS
17,715,000 8 (Z2ZF=
F 1 16,61500047T) Rl n] =
PR ERfEEE -

BN ERS TRt E R N E
R B IR B TRk AR
RULEA -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

in the financial statements of the Company.

10. DIVIDEND

the year.

11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

for the year is based on the following data:-

(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of calculating

basic eamings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:—

Interest on convertible notes

(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of calculating

diluted earnings per share

80

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 9.
Of the Group's (loss)/profit affributable to shareholders, a loss of

HK$10,936,000 (2003: HK$4,312,000) has been dealt with

10'

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

S REART
) (B51R) /&

BRME(L (B5iR) (BF

ERCREEASE (BR) SmdT
10,936,000 Bt (ZFE=F
4,312,00087) BERAREHE

RN

B2

ARRBRANFE AR BIRE ST IREM

BB -

sk (BKR) 27

RAFE - SREAREE (BE)
B TRBIA T BURETH ¢

BEHTERRNTE

AR S

HEESREERTN
0 (B8R /&

2004 2003
—ETmE —TT=f
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

(13,353) 7,135
83 20
(13,270) 7,155
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A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic eamings

per share

Effects of dilutive pofential ordinary shares:—

Convertible notes

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating diluted eamings

per share

The share options have no dilutive effect for the year because the
exercise price of the Company’s share options was higher than the

average market price of the shares during the year.

HE—STMF=A=+—HILFE

11. S8 (BR) &8F (&)

2004

—ETNHEF

2003

T

No. of shares

2 4

0% BN
TR 1,817,681,993
T

IR

AR 104,826,959

No. of shares

RE

1,649,251,000

20,274,000

AEERES
Rl op =g el

R HIR SR 1,922,508,952

1,669,525,000

BT -

RAEE - BRETREETTE
BERARBEENTEESNAFE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE—TTFE=A=+—HIFZF
= 12. FIXED ASSETS 12. BEEE
B Furnit
4@2 urnifure
Computer Office and
,E‘f‘:; equipment equipment fixtures Total
- MAE 10
. BIER R 5 BE it
é HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Q.
5 FEIT FHETT FHEIT FHEIT
g (i) The Group Il AEE
&
2
ng Costi— AR
0
N At 1st April, 2003 R-ZTE=%F
=
mA—H 1,099 856 349 2,304
Additions NE 184 370 100 654
Disposals HeE - (13) - (13)
At 31st March, 2004 R-SESHNF
=BR=+—H 1,283 1,213 449 2,945
Aggregate depreciation:— ZEE -
At 1st April, 2003 RIEE=F
mH—H 434 209 58 701
Charge for the year REEFE 335 108 193 636
Written back on disposals HE R E - (5) - (5)
At 31st March, 2004 A_TETHNF
=A=+—AH 769 312 251 1,332
Net book value:— R FE :
At 31st March, 2004 R_TEME
82 =B=+—H 514 901 198 1,613
At 31st March, 2003 RZEE=4F
=H=+—8 665 647 291 1,603




Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(i)  The Company

Cost:—
At 1st April, 2003

Disposals

At 31st March, 2004

Aggregate depreciation:—
At 1st April, 2003

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31st March, 2004

Net book value:—

At 31st March, 2004

At 31st March, 2003

12, BIERE (&)

BE_FTEMFE=A=+—HILFZF

Furniture
Computer Office and
equipment equipment fixtures Total
MAE RER
EhEax R 4] RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(i) ARE
DN
RZEE=F
mA—HA 135 22 57 214
H& - (9) - (9)
R_STHF
SERET—R 15 13 57 205
REE :
RZET=F
mA—HA 56 Q 7 72
REEHE 40 5 1 56
gD - (5) - (5]
R-ZSZNF
=R=t—-8 % % LA 123
FREFE :
R_STHF
=R=+—H 39 4 39 82
R-FT=F
=H=+—H 79 13 50 142
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

13.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

13. FSMBARZES

2004 2003

—ETmE —ET=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD ¢ KA 21 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI ] 48,284 31,361
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAST Y B8 2 Rl IE (3) =
48,302 31,382

Provision for impairment losses BARRE (9,600) =
38,702 31,382

The amounts are interestfree, unsecured and have no fixed terms

of repayment.

ERRBENRE - BERRYERFE

ol

st

/quo
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (confinved) 13. FRriEMBARZES (&) il
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:— MEBARZFEWT 3
o
o
Nominal :g)—
o
Place of value of issued T
incorporation/ ordinary shares/  Percentage of E
registration registered equity attributable
Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
BRI, BRTHER F0H
28 BRI R B S EMEFmE BEEEES LT FEXY
Directly Indirectly
BiE &
Thiz Technology Group Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands US$100 100 ~ Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as RERXES 100 %7T REER
Thiz Technology Group (BVI)
Holdings Limifed)
EITRSS RAA & B2 R PR A )
(178 Thiz Technology
Group (BVI) Holdings Limited)
THIZLUNUX INC. British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100 Investment holding
RERXES 1%L REER
THIZBIZ INC. British Virgin Islands Us$1 = 100 Investment holding
RBRAES = REZER
Thiz.Com Inc. British Virgin Islands US$200,000 = 100 Investment holding
HBRLS 200,000 %7t REZR
Thiz.Com [Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited BB 10,0007&7T provision of
85
management services
REZR AR
BERY
'
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A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

E-1

PC Media, Inc.

Thiz Technology Group Limited BIERIFFEBEBR AT

Thiz Design Group Limited

Thizlinux Laboratory Limited

B R R A R

Thizbiz Global Trade Limited

IREZRERAA

86

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (confinued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
HEMSL
EER R B 5 B

United States of

America

e

Hong Kong
5

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

13. FRiEMBLATIZEE (&)

Nominal

value of issued

ordinary shares/

registered
capital
BERTHER
HEMEFEE

US$50,000
Common stock

50,000 T EmA
HK$10,000

10,000 7T

HK$10,000
10,000 %7T

HK$10,000
10,0007&7T

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
3|
BlERES S
Directly Indirectly

-f:4 &

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities

FEEH

Dormant

HEXR

Provision of

management services

REEE RS

Development and
sales of Linux based
software products
and provision of
related training
services

FEREE
Linux B EE m &%
REARIEIR

Development, sales and
distribution of
Linux based software
and hardware
products

R - HERDH
Linux B E
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BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (confinved) 13. FRriEMBARZES (&) il
Nominal S
Place of value of issued %
incorporation/ ordinary shares/  Percentage of %
registration registered equity attributable C—;
Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities E
HEMSL BRTEER F0F
8 BRI B S B HEMEXEE BlERES S FREH
Directly Indirectly
EBiE &
Thiz Electronics Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
limited B 10,000 /7T EEX
BN FRHBR A E
The Invesiment Exchange Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
limited B 10,000 /7T EEE
RERXGHBRAT
The Recruitment Database Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Dormant
limited B 10,000 /7T EEX
BHRUEARAR
Thiz.Com (China) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100 Dormant
RERXHES 1%7T HEXE
Institute of Thiz Technology Hong Kong HK$ 100,000 - 100 Provision of fraining
Limited (formerly known as & 100,000 7T services on Linux
Thiz Grandmass ERP Systems based software
Limited) PR Linux B2
NS R BB A IR A 7 5l AR
(RIfBANRS A RIS
RHERAR) 87
'
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13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (confinued)

E_FTME= A=A —AILFE

13. FRiEMBLATIZEE (&)

Nominal
Place of value of issued
incorporation/ ordinary shares/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
B BRTLER F4%
£ ERRE R ERRAEE BlEREEAL TEXRH
Directly Indirectly
HiE &

RKEBARHER Taiwan NT$1,700,000 - 100 Sales of computer
BEFE RS BRAR E) 1,700,000 &% products and Linux
3= VYN based software and

hardware products
HEBRERR
linux BRRE(HEE MR

Beijing ThizLinux PRC US$250,000 = 100 Not yet commenced
Software Co, Limited H 250,000 7T business

IERENEAIE 5 B HAFE
HHARAH

Thizlinux Software PRC US$250,000 - 100 Provision of training
(Shenzhen) Company Limited el 250,000 %7t services on Linux based

B (R AR software

R Linux Bt 2
AR

Beijing Thiz Junye Software PRC US$150,000 - 100 Provision of training
Co, ltd. HE 150,000 &7T services on

T REEEEREERAR linux based software

R4 Linux Bt 2
AR
* This subsidiary with turnover amounted to HK$ 17,545,000 was * WHIB R RIE¥EE 17,545,000

not audited by PKF, Hong Kong

BT A B ERERE AT
FEBPEE
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14. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS

15.

Cost:—
At 1.4.2003
Additions

At 31.3.2004

Aggregate amortisation:—
At 1.4.2003
Charge for the year

At 31.3.2004

Net book value:—

At 31.3.2004

At 31.3.2003

GOODWILL

Cost:—
At 1.4.2003 and 31.3.2004

Aggregate impairment:—

At 1.4.2003 and 31.3.2004

Net book value:—

At 31.3.2003 and 31.3.2004

HE-FEMF=A=1—HILFE

14. ERRARRE

D%NE
R-ZEEF=FMA—H
i

R-SENE=A=+—H

RETHESY -
R-ZEEF=FMA—H
N S E

R-SENE=A=+—H

FREHE -
R —SEMFE=A=+—H

R-ZEE=F=A=+—H

15. &g

DFINE
R-SS=FMA—HAR
—SEME=A=+—H

B -
R-SE=FMA—AR
—SEmFE=A=+—H

FREDHE

R-BE=F=A=+—HR

—SEmFE=A=+—H

HK$'000
TETT

HK$'000
TETT

686

(686)
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16.

17.

INVENTORIES

Linux based software products package

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's frading terms with its customers are mainly on a cash-

ondelivery basis, except for major customers, where an average

credif period of 30 days is normally given.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of

provision) af the balance sheet date:~

0 - 30 days

31 =60 days
61 =90 days
Q1 - 180 days
181 - 360 days

Over 360 days

0OZ30H

31 £260H
61 290 H
Q1 £ 180 H
181 & 360 H
360 HEA £

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

16. &8
2004 2003
—EZmE T
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FiET FEIT
Linux BR{HFE R EEE 645 302
17. BUiRIE

AEBREFZRFIEREERED
3 EERFAI—MR4ETFH308

ZIEEH -

REEE B Z YRR (B EE) 28R

BTN :
2004 2003
—EZTmE —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
86 3,902
57 3,928
- 3,904
103 11,509
10,194 8,044
24,452 =
34,892 31,287
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18.

19.

20.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The amount was interest-free, unsecured and fully repaid during

the year.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
At 31st March, 2004, included in the Group's cash and bank

balances were amounts of approximately HK$804,000 (2003:
HK$238,000) denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”) and kept in the
PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China'’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Setlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of frade payables at the balance

sheet date:—

0 - 30 days 0&=30H

31 = 60 days 31 260H
181 — 360 days 181 = 360 H

HE—STMF=A=+—HILFE

18. El—RARELFTREA
BAFEDIRE - BERARNREAFA
ERHEER -

19. ReRBITHRF
RZZEZNFE=A=+—H  ~5E
ZHE RIRITHREFT#804,000787TT
(ZZZT =4 : 238,00087T) AAR
BITARE]) &8 XFRRTE -
ARBITAERABEMESE - R
m - REH BESNEEIE R E MAEE -
EERNEEERTE  ARERER
ERBETINERB ZRITHBAR
BREMEY -

20. EfHARIR

REREB 2 BNERIBZ Rk D0

T
2004 2003
—TTmE —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEIT FET
405 16
3 524
156 =
564 540
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21. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

21. ERESRE

The amounts are interestree, unsecured and repayable on demand. BAFEDRE  BEARTREX
B -
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. i&F
Number of shares HK$’000
Bfn® B TR
Authorised:— ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRR E{E 0.01 o2 TRk
At 1.4.2003 and R-ESES=FNMA—HR
31.3.2004 —2ENFE=A=+—AH 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid:- BEITREAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  BAXEE 0.01 Btz E@AR
At 1.4.2003 RZZEZE=FMWA—H 1,646,060,000 16,461
Rights issue of shares (Nofe) HAREIE (ffaE) 395,054,400 3,950
At 31.3.2004 R-ZEETMFE=A=+—H 2,041,114,400 20,411
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: The Company issued 395,054,400 new shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company at an issue price of HK$0.023 per share by way
of a rights issue in the proportion of six rights share for every twenty
five existing shares held. The net proceeds of the rights issue of
approximately HK$8,298,000 (representing cash consideration of
HK$9,086,000 less share issue expenses of HK$788,000) are
used for the development of the Group's business in the PRC and to
provide additional working capital o the Group. All shares issued

rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

Details of the rights issue of shares are set out in the Company’s

prospectus dated 30th September, 2003.

23. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 6th July, 2001, for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible parficipants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any ful4ime executive director
or employee of a company within the Group. The Scheme shall
remain in force for 10 years from 6th July, 2001 during which the
directors may make offer to grant share options to eligible

participants.

HE—STMF=A=+—HILFE

22. B&F (&)

fifat - ARRAGERTT X EFA0.02378
TLZ E{TEE4T 395,054,400 %
BREEO0.01 BT 2 #AL - thhl
REFA -+ AR B R A&
INBRARBRAR D o AR IRZ TSR
TRFERA 78,298,000 7T (BN
2B 9,086,000 BT 178
1762 788,000/ L) » TWARA
SENFEEBERIAANEE
RERINESEES - BBITZMA
Bin D EE R 2 IR B RMAEE T E

THRSEN -

HREEZ HERNAATR=T
F=FAASTATRZHRE

i)

23. BrFHMET

AAFTRBER -"EZT—S+AXERE
BZRBRRABBAES ([5
gll) - AR ERREFHARE XS
LB BRI A ERSEALEHE
BLERE - AHEZEERBEALE
EASERETAREMNEZBHTES
HEE - FEH_TT—FLANE
B - RH+F  EFARNZHE
FAERZEALRTERE -
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HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

23. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (continued) 23.

Pursuant fo the terms of the Scheme as amended in accordance
with Chapter 23 of the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securifies on
the GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”), the maximum number of the
Company's shares which can be granted under the Scheme and
any other schemes must not exceed 10% of the Company’s shares
in issue atf the date of approval and the maximum number of the
Company’s shares which can be granted to each participant must
not in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the Company's shares in

issue with effect from 1st October, 2001.

The consideration for the grant of an option is HK$ 1 each. An
opfion may be exercised at any fime during a period as defermined
by the direcfors which shall not be less than three years and not
more than fen years from the date of acceptance of options offered

under the Scheme by the grantee.

[)  Movemenfs in share opfions

At beginning of year F4

Adjustment for rights issue of shares AR IREL 2 S8
Llapsed BERM

At 31st March MR=A=+—8

Options vested at 31st March
Z BB

R=EA=+—HHE

BEHERER (&)

RIBFBIER (BERRAIERFSF L
mRA (TRIZEREMRAL) E23%
ER]) - IRIFET & RAEMEME B
HZ ARFIRNDEE RZ T EEER
A BHARBEHEITD 10% - M
REA 2B A BERIR T EER2EA
TZARBRNBBZRZTERBELR
REIEBITRMI% B -TT—F
THA—BRER-

BRREZEBREREBS BT M
BREIREZET 2 BHEERT
£ - HEZ R IE i AR AR BT
FREZBRERRES > TOR=
FMXTHEBTF -

(i) FERREZE
Number of options
MR A
2004 2003
—ZE2mE —TE=
18,180,000 39,640,000
119841437 -
- (21,460,000)
20,164,437 18,180,000
20,164,437 18,180,000
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(i)

BE_FTEMFE=A=+—HILFZF

23. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (confinued) 23. BExHwERT (&)
Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance i) REEBMEAERRERITEZ
sheet date HE R 2 15X
2004 2003
—ZTmE —ZT=F
Exercise Exercise

price Number price Number

Date of grant Exercise period per share  of options per share of options

(ifi)

(iv)

A

21st November, 2001

TERMA

30th June, 2002 to
2%th June, 2012

“TE-F#XA=1H

E-T-—FRA

BRITER  WRERE BRITEE  BREHE

HK$

BT
(Note al [Note al
(Kizta) (Kt a)

HK$
BT

I Y e E —+thA 0.284 20,164,437 0.315 18,180,000

No share option was granted during the year (2003: Nil). (i) FRLERLEBRE (ZT2=
F:E) o

No share option lapsed during the year. Details of share (iv)] FRITEBRAERY - LFER

options lapsed in prior year are sef out as below:-

Exercise price

Date of grant per share
#H A BRITER
HK$
BT
2 1st November, 2001
—TT-F+—A-+—H 0.315

Exercise period
THERAE

30th June, 2002 to 29th June, 2012
—EE_FXA=1+H=E

—T——FA=t+NHB

W BRI

Number of
options

21,460,000
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23.

24,

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (continued)
[v)]  No opfions were exercised during the year (2003: Nil).

Note a:  The exercise price has been adjusted for the rights issue of the

Company’s shares on 24th Ocfober, 2003.

Each opfion gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share of
the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or fo vote at shareholders’ meeting.

At 31st March, 2004, the exercise in full of the outstanding share
options granted under the Scheme will result in the issue of an
additional 20,164,437 shares of HK$0.01 each with
corresponding proceeds of approximately HK$5,727,000.

RESERVES

(i)  The Group
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the Company
and the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant fo the reorganisation fo rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the

Company’s shares on GEM.

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

23. xR (&)

V) FRLEBRERETE (ZTZ
=F:F) o

Ko : TEEERARRANR_ZTT=F
TH- A Z HASEIRE A

o

=

BNERERTHEARNREAR

RAMERREINBERAGRE -

RZZEZNEFE=A=+—H ' WiRkE
IR 2 W ARTT B A AR BT
% - BEHERIINETT 20,164,437 I
FRmEEC.CVET N - RS
RERRY 5,727,000 BT °

24. &

() #%&mE
R EE 2 BRI A A TR
EESEBEARARARAIL
IR LRI B A R
BB A T RO EEY 2
ggo
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24. RESERVES (confinued)

(ii)

The Company

At 1.4.2002
Repurchase of shares
[Note a)

Loss for the year

At 31.3.2003 and
1.4.2003

Rights issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Loss for the year

At 31.3.2004

R-ZEE-E£mA—H
EEEn (Hita)

AEEER

AN BT
AEERER

R-SENF=A=+—H

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

24. &M (&) i
(i) AT =
S
Capital N
Share redemption Accumulated ?%
premium reserve losses Total g
BFERE <
B fn @R o1 ] RitEiR st
HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T TET
19,573 = (1,836] 17,737
(1,915] 84 (84) (1,915]
= = (4,312) (4,312
17,658 84 (6,232) 11,510
5,136 = = 5,136
(788) = = (788)
= = (10,936 (10,936
22,006 84 (17,168) 4,922
97
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24. RESERVES (confinued)

(ii)

The Company (continued)

The Company had distributable reserves of approximately
HK$4,838,000 at 31st March, 2004. Under the
Companies law (Cap. 22 law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is
disfributable fo the shareholders of the Company, provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividends
is proposed fo be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

Note a: In prior year, the Company repurchased its own shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The shares
repurchased were cancelled and the issued share capital
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value thereof.
The premium payable on repurchase of the shares of
HK$1,915,000 was charged to the share premium
account. An amount equivalent fo the nominal value of
the shares cancelled was transferred from the income
statement of the Company to the capital redemption

reserve.

2F

FE= A=+ — AL FE

24. s (&)

(ii)

SNCING )

RIZZENE=A=+—H &
REAAHDIRREED
4,838,000 & 7T - RIEFH AT
BERAVE (—AR—FFEIFE
I 22% - KirA RERT) B
FEREEZ DRSS BHIE - K
NAEIRHEEREEBPIIEZ
B BRIBMRETEDIRT
ARBR

Ko : REFE  RNRRARES
BMARZMARARED
HED o PrREE A B 48
Bt MARREME %
TR TR A R B B
WA o BEmA DR E
1,915,000 BiTat AR s
B - HERPTEHEK
D EERFRER AR AR F
R EREEAED
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25.

26.

PROCEEDS OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVED IN
ADVANCE

On 26th March, 2004, the Company entered info a subscription
agreement with cerfain subscribers for the issue of convertible notes
with the principal amounts of HK$ 10,000,000, which bear inferest
af the rate of 2.5% per annum with maturity on 25th March, 2007.
The notes are convertible info new shares of the Company at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.036 per share (subject to
adjustments). Details of the issue of convertible notes are set out in

the Company’s announcement on 29th March, 2004.

At the balance sheet date, the Company received the subscription
money for the aforementioned convertible notes and classified them

as non-current liabilities. The issue of these notes was complefed

on 6th May, 2004.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The convertible notes of HK$4,000,000 are unlisted and bear
interest at rate of 2.5% per annum with maturity on 16th January,
2006. The interest is payable on maturity date or within 14 business
days after conversion of the notes. The notes are convertible into
new shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.036
per share (after adjusting for the rights issue of the Company's
shares on 24th October, 2003) during the period from 17th January,
2003 to 16th January, 2006 in amounts of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion. No early redemption by the

Company or the noteholders is allowed prior to the maturity date.

BE—FTEMFE=A=1—HILFE

25.

26.

F TSR RIS BRI

RZFZFEF=A=+B A2
HEETRBAR LR E D - ABTT
A& F8:E 10,000,000 A 7T 2 Al # AR
R o RMABBRRBIRFRER2.5

BFE - YR —_FTLF=A-tH
HEIH - ZEARE/R0.036 8T
(Al FHRE) 2T R BREBRASAR
AIFTAL » BITAIRBRRE 2 FBER
ARBN-_ZEZWNF=A_tIAT
B P A/N i

REER - ARREWE| Bt ATk
RBRZRBIAE - LREIRIERE
BfE - ZERENRITEEER-F
THERANRBATX °

DE- 124
& 4,000,000 7T 2 PR &I
ELW F8XR25E R-FT

NE—ATNBRE - R SAREH
B g ERRI4EAEEAR

XA o REARFA0.036 BT (K&
R-ZFZ=F+A-THOBEARFR
M2 HBRFERAER) 2 ABRER
EE=F—ATLtRE_TTRF—
ATRBHREEBAARAE ZH K
fn MBREBRZEBETER
500,000 77T - REIFRE A - ARA]
SRBERAANSRFELD
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Wor i — R Bt B 2 )

Net assefs acquired:
Fixed assefs
Cash and bank balances
Other payables and accruals

Loans from shareholders

Net identifiable assets and liabilities

Positive goodwill arising on consolidation

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration

Inferest in @ jointly controlled entity

HE—FTMF=A=+—HILFE

BACEERE:
BEEE
Re RR1TEF
H At FEA A K AT R

AEREENBEFE
GEELZIERE

R
REHE
FriE— R RS
(R

27. mERfRERME

2004
—ZEmE

2003

—FT=F

HK$’000
FET

HK$'000

TET

34

(@)
(1,299

(1,272)
686

(5806)

50

(636)

(5806)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE—TTFE=A=+—HIFZF

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 27. GeR&RERME (&)
STATEMENT (continued)

Analysis of nef cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect WEEM B AT > B4 BB =EEE
of acquisition of the subsidiary:— 35 B A

2004 2003

—SEmE —TT=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET T

Cash consideration RBEeRE - 50

Cash and bank balances acquired BAZRE MIRTTET - (2)

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents & MRS EEEE
ZIREIMI R - 48
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28. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENT 28. EEHERE

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group and the Company had
outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases

in respect of land and buildings, which fall due as follows:—

RZZTEWF=FA=+—8 ' AKH
RARFIF T REF 2 TRl EEEE
EHRANAWRBITAE  ZIHB M
T

Group Company
F%H b 3/
2004 2003 2004 2003
—TEmE _—_TT=F ZBEME _—_TT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000  HK$'000
F#T T#&T F#ET T#ET
Within one year —FR 2,135 1,579 332 360
In the second to E_EFENF
fifth years inclusive (BEEEMS) 2,575 632 30 150
4,710 2,211 362 510

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
and the Company for their office premises and staff quarters. leases
are negotiated for an average term of one fo three years with fixed

monthly rentals.

REMEFREARE R AR RE
MAEMERBEIFEENZHES -
BHOFHRM—ZE2=F  BAXNE
ERE e
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29. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

(a)

On 26th February, 2004, the Company's subsidiary, Thizlinux
Laboratory Limited ("TLL") filed a statement of claim with the
High Court of Hong Kong against Prewell Infernational Limited
("Prewell”) for recovery of arrears in fee from distribution of
Linux based software products in the aggregate sum of
HK$50,700,000 (equivalent of USD6,500,000) together
with damages. On 25th May, 2004, Prewell filed a statement
of defence and a counterclaim against TLL for the sum of
HK$15,600,000 (equivalent of USD2,000,000] being
repayment of the disfribution fee previously paid by Prewell
to the Group together with damages by claiming that there

were defects in the products supplied by TLL.

Based on the legal advice obtained, TLL has a good prima
facie case in respect of its claim of outstanding fee. Regarding
the defence and counterclaim, it appears that they lack the
necessary particulars as required by the Rules of the High
Court. In particular, Prewell fails to plead time, place, persons
involved and particulars of facts on which Prewell relies to
establish its defence. In respect of the claim that the products
are defective, Prewell fails to plead fime, persons and manners
involved as fo how the notices of defect were given and efc.
In the circumsfances, it is premature fo assess the merifs of

the counterclaim.

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

29. ARTRZRR

(a)

R-FZNE_A_+RB &
RAITE A RIENR R RHR AR
rAEl ([EEREL ) mMEERSE
B R R R E - FPrewell
International Limited ([Prewell])
BEDEHE Linux M EmER 2
RIE (EREE) @ fZE
50,700,000 & (FBER
6,500,000%7T) - R=ZZEM
FRA=-TEH  Prewell I3
BRERRBR - 15N R
FiRft 2 EmAIREE - BN &
FREAR 15,600,000 (4
£ 2,000,000%7T) © tEAR
& Prewell LRI TAKEZ 5
HE (GERE) -

REFIE 2 ARER - NEER
R} B P 2 RIS
BRAET - AR RES
2T - REUTREIERSS
SERR B 2 PR AR o I
9 - Prowell REEHE ST 5 ELR
RSB - 08 - At
REEHELR - RESARE
2478+ Prowell RALBMATE
BB R BRI R
B AL RITRER o FUER
T SRR RRE R
CLE
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29. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

In the opinion of the direcfors, a significant portion of the
alleged debts can be recovered from Prewell and an
adequate provision for doubtful debts has been made in
these financial statements. Regarding the counterclaim by
Prewell, the directors consider that the counterclaim is at its
preliminary stage and it is premature fo make provision against

such claim.

A former employee of Beijing Thizlinux Software Co, Limited
["BTS"), a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, (the “ex-
employee”) was dismissed on 10th February, 2004. On 26th
March, 2004, the exemployee instfituted legal proceedings
in the PRC court against BTS by claiming arrears in salaries
of RMB420,000, interesf, economic compensation and
damages which in aggregate amounted to approximately
RMB2,154,000. BTS strongly disputes the claim and has

taken legal advice.

On 27th April, 2004, BTS filed a counterclaim against this
ex-employee in the PRC court for the recovery of a loan of

approximately RMB239,000 advanced fo him.

E_FTME= A=A —AILFE

29. ARTRZHE (&)

EERR Al Prewell 57 EIK
BOEETNER - HEEREE
BT R AR ER A R 4 5
1% ° 3t Prewell IR 2 R ZE M
5 BERR/RBRIENSHE
B - Bt AR RIELBEDD
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FAEEIL BN - b AR A
A AER# 420,000 T2 RE -
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AR 2,154,000 7t © Jb AN
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RENEAPBDER IR R AR
A% AIE BB BN TEZER
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Notes to Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

29. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)
As advised by the Group's PRC Lawyers, the salaries of the

ex-employee was fully setiled at the time of dismissal and,
accordingly, the claim for salaries in arrears and the relevant
interest cannot be established. In addition, the claim for
economic compensation and damages is without merits. In
respect of the counterclaim by BTS, the PRC lawyers are of
the opinion that the ex-employee is liable to repay the

outstanding loan in the presence of strong evidence submitted

by BTS.

In the opinion of the direcfors, the loan is fully recoverable
and no provision for doubtful debts is required to be made in

these financial statements.

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
On 28th March, 2002, a joint venture agreement was entered

into by the Company, Eaglemax International Investment Limited
[“ElL"), a company wholly owned by Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, and
Beijing Normal University ["BNU") in relation to the formation of a
sinoforeign equity joint venture, JingShi Thizlinux Laboratory Stock
Company (the “JV"). Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the
Company, Elll and BNU are committed to confribute
RMB 15,000,000, RMB 15,000,000 and RMB20,000,000
respectively for their respective inferests of 30%, 30% and 40% in
the JV. However, there is no payment schedule specified in the joint

venture agreement.

BB _ETMFE=A=1T—HIFFE

29. MRTHRZHRE (&)

BREAEETEZMZER © %
AR B 2 ¥ & B N ERBEL
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E=AREFAI2HED - HE
AR EM B RERABLRARE
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30. BAKiE

R-ZFF-_F=A=-+N\B AR
Al YR KA EHEE 2 Eaglemax
Infernational Investment Limited ([EIIL])
Eb AN &5 A2 ([BNU) - SRz
HNE B E B — RADBNR BHA AR5
BRAR ([BEREFILEERE
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ElL & BNU Az EE BN aEhE
Frib#zx 30% ~ 30% &k 40% 7 Bl /EE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

On 3rd June, 2002, the Company, EllL and BNU entered info a
joint venture supplemental agreement whereby the three parties
agreed to set up/develop the 100 JingShi Thizlinux Infernet Course
Programmes (the "Programmes”). Under the joint venture
supplemental agreement, each of the Company and EllL is
committed fo investing RMB 10,000,000 for the development of
the Programmes whereas BNU will be responsible for the
development, design of the courses and the provision of course
contents. There is no investment schedule specified in the

supplemental agreement.

Full details are set out in the announcement dated 3rd June, 2002.

Subsequent fo the date of entering info the supplemental agreement,
BNU intended to agree with the Company and EllL o fix the timeline
for investments in the Programmes by the end of June 2002, this

was disagreed by the Company and ElIL.

As advised by the PRC lawyers, the disagreement amongst the
three parties has made the whole contractual arrangement
incomplete and, accordingly, all the three parties to the agreements

are no longer committed to invest in the JV and the Programmes.

E_FTME= A=A —AILFE
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS HR AR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

31.

32.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the fransactions as disclosed in nofes 18, 21 and 30 to
the financial statements, the Group had no other material ransactions

with its related parties during the year.

The entering info the joint venture agreement and the supplemental
agreement as detailed in note 30 to the financial statements
constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.
The directors are of the opinion that these transactions were carried
out in the normal course of business of the Group and on normal

commercial terms.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
On 6th May, 2004, the Company issued convertible notes with

aggregate principals of HK$ 10,000,000 as detailed in note 25

to the financial statements.

BE—FTEMFE=A=1—HILFE

31.

32.

FREALRS
BREFISIRRMIZE 18 » 21 RIOFTHE

ZRZIN - AEERFAREESEREE
ATUEEMEARS

RIBEIZER ETRA - AT EE %
EEFETHE (FERRTBHRE
FizE 30) #WAER S - EFRBRZ
FERXGTINAEE —REFBETE
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RHA&ER
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Financial Summary

EREE

& RESULTS E
%é Year ended 31st March,
e BE=A=+-HL%E
% 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
= ZPPME —TT=F _—TT-F -—TT-F _"TITTH
g HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
o FHET AT  FEr  TET  FEx
3
_? Turnover = 37,415 64,152 30,392 4,315 34,923
ig
P (loss|/profit from operations 4% (&518) /%7 (13,253) 7,056 1,181 (6,059) (1,828)
. Finance costs BER A (100) (20) (122) - -
Share of profit/(loss) of a JENG — R £ R
jointly controlled entity ©EHF,/ (F18) - 99 (625) (160) -
(Loss)/ profit before tax KRBT (B518) /A (13,353) 7,135 434 (6,219) (1,828)
Tax IR - - (6) (6) (12)
(Loss)/profit attributable fo RN (BB) HF
shareholders (13,353) 7,135 428 (6,225 (1,840
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Financial Summary

R

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

DEDUCT:

CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET CURRENT ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)

I

=
Al

mBBE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #ZE BB &R

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS//(LIABILITIES)

I

BE/ () #

nREAR

org

BRERAR

As at 31st March,

®W=BA=+—H

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
—EEME —TT- —EE-F Z—TT-F —TTTHF
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#TT FEr FET FET FEr
7475 4,236 4,810 364 365
40,997 36,145 23,565 1,898 1,415
Q043 5,906 3,037 13,454 6,740
31,054 30,239 20,528 (11,556) (5,325)
39,429 34,475 25,338 (11,192) (4,960)
(14,000) (4,000) - - -
25,429 30,475 25,338 (11,192) (4,960)

Annual Report 2004 F %

109

‘..L_r

Y

P



I
J
s
T
#k
=
r’?e\»
H
—
mx
-
Q£
E
=
Q
2
o
O
>
()
el
o
c
-
O
0]
2
N
-
=

Corporate Information

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Unit 502-505, 5/F., Tower 3

Enterprise Square, @ Sheung Yuet Road
Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

With effect from 29th July 2004:

Unit 1004, 10/F, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre

37 Ma Tau Wai Road
To Kwa Wan
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Ugland House, South Church Street

P. O. Box 309, George Town
Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British VWest Indies

Company Website

www.thizgroup.com

Principal Share Registrar

Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Lid.
Butterfield House, Fort Street

P. O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tengis Limited

Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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#2004 F7 H 29 HEER :
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FHEREE 37 5%

AT OB 10 1004 =

MM EE
Ugland House, South Church Street

P. O. Box 309, George Town
Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British West Indies

AGE

www.thizgroup.com

TERMBFELE
Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Lid.

Butterfield House, Fort Street
P. O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

TEER

Principal Banker

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Tsimshatsui Branch

82-84 Nathan Road

Tsimshatsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Legal Advisers

As to Hong Kong law
Cheung, Tong & Rosa
Rooms 1621-33, 16th Floor
Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands law

Maples and Calder Asia

1504 One International Finance Centre
1 Harbour View Street

Hong Kong

Auditors

PKF

26th Floor
Citicorp Centre

18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Company Secretary and Qualified Accountant
Mr. Chan Sai Yan, ACCA
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Corporate Information

General Information
Listing
iR

Listing Date
EHEH

Nominal Value

[Ei=!

Stock Code
R D55

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
BBBAT

Reuters

BB

Bloomberg
ZEmALt

Announcement of 2004 Results
N TR F LS H

Financial Year End

MRFEESEER

—REH

Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BRBMARZMARARAEIZER

27th July, 2001
—EE—F+A=-++tH

HK$0.01 per share

F0.01 87T

8119

8119.HK

8119 HK

28th June, 2004

—EZNEA-1/\H

31st March
=A=+—H
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